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Report of the Directors continued

Description of shares

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS — SHARE CAPITAL

The interests of the Directors (except for
Directors of Waterford Wedgwood ple) and
their immediate families in the share capnal
of Waterford Wedgwood plc are set out
below"

Number of stock unts

31 March 2007 5 Aprl 2008

Director

M Gawn

stock units

200 200

31 March 2007

Waterford Wedgwood plc stock units each
comprise one Waterford Wedgwood plc
ordinary share of €0 06 and one non-voting
ncome share of Stglp 1n Waterford
Woedgwood UK ple

DIRECTORS' OPTIONS

Details of executive share options, granted
in accordance with the rules of the
Waterford Wedgwood Group Schemes,
hetd by the Directors (except for Directors
of Waterford Wedgwood plc) in the share
capital of Waterford Wedgwood plc are

set out below:

Weighted average

5 April 2008 exercise price

Durector

M Gawvin

15,307,984

15307984 €006

Qurstanding opuons are exercisable on
dates becween 2008 and 2015

The market price at the year end date was
| 18p The highest share price during the
year was 4 40p and the lowest | 00p

DIRECTORS” CONTRACTS

Cther than service contracts, there have
been no contracts or arrangements with
the Company or any subsidiary during the
financial year or between 5 April 2008 and
| August 2008, in which a Director of the
Company was materially interested and
which was significant sn refation to the
Company's business
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INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the year to 5 April 2008, the
Company maintained an Insurance of
Officers against liabilities to the Company
and its subsidianes

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report and the Group financial
statements In accordance with applicable
law and International Ftnancial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and for preparing the
parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdormn Accounting Scandards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepred Accounung
Pracuce)

The Dhrectors are responsible for preparing
financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the profit or loss of the
Grotip and a true and fair view In
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state
of affairs of the Company for that pericd In
preparing those financial statements, the
Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounung pohcies and
then apply them consistently,

* make judgments and esumnates that are
reasonable and prudent,

* state whether the Group financial
statements comply wich IFRSs as adopted
by the European Unton, and wrth regard
to the parent Company financial
statements whether applicable
accounung standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless 1t 1s
inappropriate to presume that the Group
will conttnue in business

The Directors confirm that they have
complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose




with reasonable accuracy at any ume the
financial posiuon of the Company and the
Group and to enable them to ensure that
the Group financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985 and the parent
Company financial stacements comply with
the Companies Act 1985 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO
AUDITORS

So far as each of the Directors in office at
the date of approval of these financial
statements are aware

+ there Is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

+ they have taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as Directors in
order 1o make themselves aware of
any relevant audit Informacion and to
establhish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that information

SHARE CAPITAL

All of the Company’s ordinary shares of
25p each, which carry the right to vote at
general meetngs of the Company, are held
by Waterford Wedgwood plc At 5 April
2008 the 1ssued share capital of the
Company comprised 181,601,762 ordinary
shares and 5,454 084,984 income shares

RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The Group maintains design and
development departments in its matn
manufacturing divisions Expenditure

on design and development in the year
amounted to £2 4 millien and related mainly
to the development of new processes and
manufzcturing technologies

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

The Directors remain committed to
providing the conditions best suited to
encourage the personal involvement of all
employees in the futre development of the
business This involves open and regular
commumication with all employees, the
provision of trainmg and development
opportenities and prefit sharing and
employee share schemes Several employee

share schemes operate within the Group
and involve a significant number of
employees

The Group's continuous Improvement
ininatives are important feacures in
improving the quahity of working life

With regard to the employment of disabled
people, the Group works in close co-
operation with local disablement
resettlement officers to recruit and train
disabled employees and to provide,
whenever possible, career development for
those whose health no longer allows them
to conunue n their normal occupation

HEALTH, SAFETY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group pursues an active policy of
providing safe systems of work and high
standards of environmental management

Regular meeungs of the Group’s health and
safety committees have been held

The Group's policies and procedures have
achieved compliance with legal obligations

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group donated approximately
£240,000 for charitable purposes during
the year

The Group made nc political contributions

EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

There have been no significant events
affecting the Group since the year end,
other than those set out in note | to the
financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recogrises the importance

of an effecuve financial risk management
programme The key objecuves and policies
of the Group In relatuon to financial risk
management, including the use of hedging
and the exposure of the Group to credr,
hquidity, mterest rate and foreign currency
risks, are set out in note 23 to the financal
statements

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group 1s committed to good
Corporate Governance and supports the
principles set out i1n the Combined Code
As an intermediate holding Company, the

Group s part of the governance procedures
established by Waterford Wedgwood Group
The Waterford Wedgwood Group annual
report and financial statements describe
how the principles set out in the Combined
Code have been applied

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The results for 2008 and 2007 have been
prepared in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appont
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors to the
Company will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting

GOING CONCERN

After making appropriate enquiries and
on the basis of current finanaial projections
and faohues avaifable, and as explained in
note | to the financial statements, the
Directors have a reasonable expectauon
that the Group has adequarte resources to
continue operauons for the foreseeable
future and have therefore prepared

the financral statements on a going
concern basis

By order of the Board

Mark Downte W ké

Company Secretary
I Augustc 2008
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc

We have audited the Group and parent
company financial statements (the “‘financial
statements’’} of Waterford Wedgwood

UK plc for the year ended 5 Apni 2008
which comprise the Consolidated Incame
Statement, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense and the related notes These
financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set

out therein

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng
the Annual Report and the Group financial
statements i1n accordance with apphcable
law and Internauonal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and for prepaning the
parent company hnancral statements 1n
accordance with applicable taw and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng
Practice) are set out 1n the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibdities

Our responsibility 1s to audn the hinanual
statements in accordance with relevant

legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Audinng (UK
and Ireland) This report, ingluding the
optnion, has been prepared for and only

for the company’s members as 2 body 1n
accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose We do not, v giving this opiruon,
accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this
teport 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may
came save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent i wning

We report to you our opimon as to whether
the financial statements give a true and

fair view and whether the hnancial
statements have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 We also report to you whether in our
optnion the information given 1n the Report
of the Directors 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

In addition we report to you if, 1n our
opinion, the company has not kept proper
accountung records, if we have not recewed
all the informaton and explanauons we
require for our audit, or 1f information
specitied by law regarding directors’
remuneratton and other transactions

15 not disclosed

We read other information contained 1n

the Annual Report and consider whether

it 15 consistent with the audsted finanual
statements The other information
compnises only the Report of the Directors
We consider the imphcations for our report
if we become aware of any apparent mis-
statements or material inconsistencies with
the hinancial statements Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance
with Internattonal Standards on Audiung
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes
examunation, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures tn
the tinancial statements It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors tn the
preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate 1o the Group's and company’s
crreumstances, consistently apphed and
adequatcly disclosed

We planned and performed our audit

5o as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance

that the inancial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other wrregularity or error In
forming our opinzon we also evaluated the .
overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements

OPINION
In our opiion

* the Group linancial statements give a
true and fatr view, 1n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, of the statc of the Group's affairs
as at 5 April 2008 and of its loss and cash
flows for the year then ended,

* the Group hnanuial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985,

*+ the parent company finanuial statements
give a true and fair view, 1n accordance
with United Kmgdom Generally
Accepied Accounting Practice, of the
state of the parent company’s affairs as
at 5 Aprl 2008,

* the parent company hnancial statements
have been properly prepared 1n
accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and

* the information given in the Report of
the Ditectors 1s consistent with the
financal statements

EMPHASIS OF MATTER — GOING
CONCERN

In forming eur opinion, which 15 not
qualified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosures made 1n note 1 to the
financal statements concerning the directors’
confidence 1n the Group's ability to contunue
as a going concern The matters explamned 1n
note 1 indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast sigmficant doubt
about this ablity However, the initiatives
being progressed by the directors to address
the Group's funding requirements, to
implement planned cost reduction measures
and to meet working capital requirements
gnve them confidence 1o the attamment of
these goals

PictnsaTnbissie Cagpecs

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered
Auditars

Dublin

1 August 2008




Consolidated income statement

Year ended 5 April 2008

2008 2007

Notes £ Mullions £ Mihons

Revenue 3 414 7 4371
Operating loss before excepuonal iems 3 (86 9) (43)
Exceptional items 4 719 (0B)
Operating loss (158 8} (51
Finance income 06 04
Finance costs 5 {19 1) (178)
Loss before income tax (177 3) (22'5)
Income tax mcome/(expense) 8 59 072
Loss for the year (171 4) (227)

{Loss)/profit attnibutable to

— Equity holders of the Company {1704) (228)

— Minority interests {10} [
(171 4) (227

Peter john Goutandns

- 4
Maira Gaan ’&(}MI‘\,
Director
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 5 April 2008

2008 2007
Notes £ Mulions £ Millions
EQUITY

Capital and reserves aunbutable 10 the Company’s equty holders
Equity share capital 2l 1000 1000
Retained losses 22 (5323) (361 7)
Translation reserves 22 310 17
(435 4) (260 0)
Minonty interests 16 20
Total equuty (433 8) {258 0)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3725 4258

Peter john Goulandrs

Moira Gawn
Drrector

~

2008 Annuat Report & Accounts Waterford Wedgwood UK. ple
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 5 April 2008

2008 2007
Notes £ Milhons £ Midbons
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets i 38 831
Property, plant and equipment 10 742 798
Financial assets 11 17 13
Trade and other recevables 3 Gl 02
Deferred income tax assets 18 - Q5
To1al non-current assets 998 164 9
Current assets
Inventories 12 1633 144 4
Trade and other recewvables 13 984 105 4
Cash and cash equivalents 106 1}
2723 2609
Naon current assets ~ classified as held for saie 04 -
Total current assets 2727 2609
TOTAL ASSETS 3725 4258
LIABILITIES
Current Labilines
Trade and other payables 14 5788 4657
Finance lease obligations 16 24 214
Current iIncome tax habilities 30 29
Bank overdraft and short term borrowings - 06
Prowvisions for other labilities and charges 17 100 68
Total current habilies 5942 4781
Non-current habilines
Finance lease obhgations 16 159 163
Retirerment benefit obligations 20 586 588
Deeferred income tax habilities 8 - 74
Provisions for other haoilibes and charges 17 65 80
Borowings 12 1255 1120
Trade and other payables 15 56 22
Total non current habilines 2121 2057
80 3 4B3 8§

TOTAL EXABILITIES

18 o2 A Amn_= Temae & Aocmrme
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Consolidated statement of recognised

expense
Year ended 5 April 2008

income and

2008 2007
£ Milkons £ Mulisons
Items of income and expense recogmsed directly o equity
Currency translauon adjustments (48) 22
Actuarial gans on defined benefit pension schemes 04 348
Net (expense)/income recogmsed directly 1n equity (44) 379
Loss for the year {1714} (227)
Total recognised sncome and expense for the year (175 8) 143
Attrbutable to
Equrty holders of the Company {1748) 143
Minorty interest {10} -
(175 8) 143

Total recognised income and expease for the year

Vi zm=-toro hweogwooe UK pl. 2008 Aarue Resstt & Alices




Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 5 April 2008

2008 2007
Notes £ Millsons £ Milhons
Cash flows from operaung acuviues
Cash generated by/{used n) operations 28 17 (103)
Income tax paid 08 {an
Net cash generated by/(used m) operaung activities 109 (11 4)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, piant and equipment (68) (¢ 5)
Purchase o1 intangible assets 02 -
Purchase of finanwal assets ©2) -
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 22 34
Net cash used 1n mvestung acrivities {50) (31)
Cash flows from finanang activines
Interest pard (157) (130)
Interest receved 06 04
Proceeds from barrowings 329 358
Repayment of borrowings (233) (120)
Payment of finance lease habilmes (12 an
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activinies 67) 101
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts (0B} (44)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginruing of the year 105 157
Exchange gains and losses on cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 09 ©8)
106 105

Cash, cash equivalents and bank everdrafts at the end of the year

2008 An-uz' Repo— & Azcou~i Wate—ord Wasgwsooc UK pe
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Group accounting policies under IFRS

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements

of Waterford Wedgwood U K. pic have been
prepared 1n accordance with EU adopted
International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), Internznonal Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee {IFRIC)
mterpretatrons and with those parts of the
Companies Acts appheable to companies
reporting under IFRS

[FRS, as adopted by the EU, differ n
certamn respects from [FRS a5 1ssued by the
IASB However, the consolidated Anancizl
statements for the financial years presented
would be no different had TFRS as 1ssued by
the JASB been applied References to IFRS
heteafter should be construed as references
to IFRS as adopted by the EU

BASIS OF PREFARATION

The censchdared financial statements,
which are presented in stetling midhons 1o
one decimal place, have been prepared
under the histoncal cost convention, except
for the measurement, at fair value, of share
opttens and denvartive fmancial instruments

The preparation of financial statements
conformuty with TFRS requures the use of
certam crtical accounung assumptions It
also requires management 10 exercise its
judgment 1n the process of applying the
Group's accountng polictes The areas
requiring & higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumpuiens and
estumates are significant to the consohidated
financial statements, relate primarly o
sccountung for inventory, retrement benefir
obhgations, property, plant and equipment,
deferred tax, indefinste life mtangible asser
and gong concemn assessment and are
documented in the refevant notes

Tne financial informauon 1s prepared for a
53 week penod ending on 5 Aprnl 2008
Comparazves are for the 52 week peniod
ended on 31 March 2007 The balance
sheets for 2008 and 2007 have been drawn
up as at 5 Apnl 2008 and 31 March 2007

respectvely

ADOPTION OF IFRS AND IFRIC
INTERPRETATIONS

Certainn new standards, nterpretatiors and
amendments to published s:andards have
been 1ssued that are mandatory for the

vvg-erora vveagwaoa w K i 2008 Anue Repe™ b omozou

Group's accounung periods beginning on,
or after, 6 April 2008, or later peniods, but
which the Group has not early adopted

are as follows,

(2) Standerds, amendments and mierpretations
that are effectve and bave been adopted
dureng the financial year
» IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments

Dusclosures’, and the complementary
amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentauon
of financial statements — Capital
drsclosures’, introduces new
disclosures relating to financral
instruments and does not have any
impact on the class:ficanon and
vahianon of the Group's inancial
mstruments

- IFRIC 11, ‘TFRS 2 - Group and
treasury share transactions’ [FRIC
11 provides guidance on whether
share-based transactions involving
treasury shares, or involving Group
enuties (for example, opuons over 4
parent's shares), should be accounted
for as equuty-settled, or cash sevded,
share-based payment wansactions mn
the stand-alone accounts of the
parent and Group compames This
nterpretanon does not have any
umpact on the Group finanaal
statements

(b) Standards and interpretations that are
effective but not relevant to the Group
fimancial staterzents
+ TFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’,

« IFRIC 7, ‘Applying the restarement
zpproach under IAS 29, Fmancial
reportmg 1n hyper inflawonary
economies’,

+ IFRIC 8, ‘Scope of IFRS 2/,

+ IFRIC 9, ‘Re-assessment of
embedded derwvauves’, and

+ IFRIC 10, ‘Intenim fnancial
reporting and impairment’

(Y Sta=dards, arendmerts and mmrapretations
shat ave not ye effective and have nor been
early adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments
and interpretanons to existing siandards
have been published and are mandatory
for the Group's zccounting pertods
beginning on or zfter 6 April 2008 or
later penods, but the Group has not
early adopted them
+ IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 — The L on

2 denned benef- asset, mnimum
fundmg requirements and thewr

=

mteraction’ {effective from 1 January
2008) IFRIC 14 provides gudance
on assessing the hmut in JAS 19 on
the amount of the surplus that ¢an
be recogmsed as an asset It also
explamns how the pension asset

or liabiliry may be affected by a
statutory or contractual minumnum
funding requirement The Group s
currently assessing the impact of this
mtcrprctatlon

JAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentatnon
of financial statements’, (effecuve for
annual periods begmning on or after
1 Japuary 2009} The mamn aum of
the amended version of JAS 1 15to
aggregate information 1n the financial
staterments on the basis of shared
charactenstics Consequently
changes n equity (net assets) of an
entity ansing from transacuons with
owners 1n ther capacity as owners,
will be disclased separately from
other changes 1o equity The Group
will apply this revised standard from
1 Aprl 2009 The Group is currendy
assessing the impact of this standard
1AS 23 {Amendment), ‘Borrowing
costs' (effecnve from 1 Janunary
2009} The amendment to the
standard 1s still subject 10
endorsement by the European
Union It requires an entity to
capitahse borrowing costs direetly
attributable to the acquisiuon,
construction or producnon of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a
subszantal penod of nme 10 get
ready for use or sale) as part of the
cost of that asset The option of
immediately expensing those
borrowing costs will be removed
The Group will apply IAS 23
(Amended) from1 Apnl 2009 but 15
currently not apohcanle to the Group
as there are no qualifying assets

1AS 27 (Rewised), ‘Consolidated
and separate hnancial statemenas’,
(effective for annual perrods
begimmmg on or zfter 1 July 2009)
IAS 27 (Revised) requires the effect
of all transacnons, with non-
controlling interest, to be recorded n
equigy if there 15 no change 1n
control They will no Jonger resubin
goodwili or gains and losses The
stendzre slso specifies the



accounting when control 1s lost Any
rematmung Lnterest 1n the entiry s re-
measured to fair value and a gam or
loss 15 recognsed 1n profit or loss
The Group will apply thes revised
standard from the effecuve date The
Group 15 currently assessing the
umpact of this standard

IFRS 2 Vesung condinons and
cancellation — Amendment to IFRS 2
Share-based Payment’, (effectve for
annual penods beginming on or after
i January 2009) The amendment
addresses two matters It clanfles
that vesting conditions are service
conditions and performance
conditions only Other featuresof 2
share-based payment are not vesting
conditons It also specifies that all
cancellations, whether by the ennty
or by other parties, should recewve
the same accounting treatment

The Group wall apply this revised
standard from the effecuve daze and
15 currently assessing the impact on
the Group financial statzments
IFRS 3 {Revised), ‘Business
combinaton’, (effecuve for annuat
penods beginmng on or afrer 1 July
2009) The standard continues 1o
apply the acqusiion method to
business combinatons, with some
sigruficant changes These changes
include a requirsment that all
payments to purchase a business

are to be recorded at farr value at
the acquistuon date, with some
contngent payments subsequently
re-measured through income
Goodwill may be caleulzred based
on the parent’s share of net assets
oz 1t may wnclude goodwil related

to mmorty mterest All transacuons
cagss will be eapensed The Group
wll apply this revised standard

from the effecuve date and s
currently assessing the ympact on the
Group financial statemenss

IFRS 8, Operaung segments
(effectrve from annual penods
begiznung on or after 1 January
2009) IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 and
aligns segment repo—img with the
requirernents of the US standard
SFAS 131, ‘Dusclosures about
segments of an enterprise and
~elated mnformauon’ The new

.

standard requures a ‘management
approach’, under which segment
mformation 15 presented on the
same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes The Group will
apply IFRS 8 from 5 Apnl 2009, and
1s currently assessing the unpact on
the Group financial statements
14S 32 and IAS 1 (Amendment),
Puttable financsal instruments and
obligations artsing on hqudation’
(effective for annual periods begin-
ning of: or afte: 1 January 2009} The
amendments requure some puttable
financial instruments and some
financial instruments that impose on
the entity an obliganon to deliver, to
another party, a pro-rata share of net
assets of the enury only on hquid-
ation, 1o be classified as equity The
Group will apply the amendments
from the effective date and currentdy
does not anticipate that the amend
ments wii] have any impacts on the
Group financial statements
Amendments to [FRS 1 ‘First-ume
adopuon of TFRS’ and IAS 27
‘Conschdared and separate financial
statements — cost of an invesiment 1n
a subsidiaty, jointly controlled erury
or associate’, {effecuve for annual
peniods begmmung on or after 1
January 2009) First-tume adoprers
are permitted to use a desmed cost
of exther fair value or the carrying
amount under previous acCOUNUNE
practice to measure the munal cost of
mvestments m subsidiares, joindy
controlied entities and associates in
the separate financial statements
The amendment also removed
the defimtion of the cost method
from IAS 27 and replaced mwith 2
requiremnent to present dividends
25 .ncame in the separate hnancal
statemants of the mvestor The
Group will appty this revised
stendard from the effecuve date 2nd
1s currently assessing the impact on
the Group's financial statements
Imp-ovement o IFRS, (most of the
amendments are effecuve for annual
periods beginning on ar after 1
Januvary 2009) The Improvernenis
to IFRS represent a number of ‘nan-
rgent’ 2rmendments 1o IFRSs that
volve account.ag changes for

d)

presentation, recognition and
measurement, and terminology or
editorial changes with minimal
accounung effect The Group will
apply these improvemens from
thewr relative effectrve dates and =5
currently assessing the impact on:
the Group’s financtal statements
IERIC 15, ‘Agreements for the
construction of real estate’ (effectve
1 January 2009) IFRIC 15 was
1ssued to address diversity 1n
accounung for real estate sales
Some enunes recoghise IEVEnUe m
accordance wizh IAS 18, ‘Revenne’
(when the risks and rewards in the
real estate are transferred) and
others recogmse revenue as the real
estate 1s developed 1n accordance
with JAS 11, ‘Construcuon
Contracts’ The Group 1s currently
assessing IFRIC 15 bur 1t 1s not
expected to impact the Group
financial statements

[FRIC 16, ‘Hedges of a Net
Investment in & Foreign Operanon’
(effecuve 1 October 2008) IAS 39
and IAS 21 provide hmited guidance
on the apphcation of therr
requurements for hedges of net
investments 1 foreagn eperauons
With th:s interpretaton the IFRIC
has provided practical gmidance to
help entiues apply those standards
consistently The Group will apply
thus interpretation from the effecuve
date and 1s currently assessing the
impaet on the Group financral
statements

Interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the
Group’s operations

The following interpretations to exisung
standards have been pupusnea wat are
mandatory for the Group’s accounung
periods beginning on or after 6 Aprl
2008 or tater peniods but are not
relevart for the Group's operanions

TFRIC 12, “Service concession
arrangements’ (effecuve from 1
January 2008) IFRIC 12 apphes to
contraciual arrangements whereby

a privaie SECTOI OpETator patticipates
1o the developmens, financing,
operauon and rmaintenance ol
méastructure for public sector
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services IFRIC 12 15 not retevant
to the Group’s operauens because
none of the Group’s compames
provide public sector services

« TFRIC 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effecuve from 1 July
2008} IFRIC 13 clarihes that where
goods or services are sold together
with a customer loyalty incentive
{for example, loyalty points or free
products}, the arrangement 15 a
multuple-element arrangement and
the consideranion recervable from the
customes 15 allocated berween the
components of the arrangement
using farr values IFRIC 13 1s not
relevant to the Group's operauons
because none of the Group's com-
parues operate loyalry programmes

BASIS OF CONSQLIDATION

The consolidated financial statrements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakengs
Subsidtary undertakings are mcluded in the
consohdared financ:al statements from the
date on which control over the operating
and Anancial policies 15 obtained and cease
10 be consohdated from the daze on which
control 15 tranisferred out of the Group
Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indireetly, to govern the
finanaial and operatng polaes of an enuty
50 as to obtain economuc benefits from its
activities, generally accompanying 2
shareholding of more than one half of the
votung rights The exstence and effecrt of
potenual voung rights that are currently
exeraisable or convertible are considered m
determumng the exastence, or otherwise, of
control All intra-group balences and
transacuons, mcluding unrezhsed profts
arising from intra-group ttansactons, are
ehrminarad on conschdanor Accounting
pohcies of subsidiznies have been changed
where pecessary to ansurs consistensy
with policies adopted by the Group

All subsichanies’ year ends correspond

with the Group's with the excepuon of
Rosenthal AG's whose year end was 31
Marck 2008

SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment 15 2 group of assezs and
operauons engaged m providing products
tha- are subject 10 risks and returns that
are differen. ‘rom those of other business

segments A geographuie segment 15 engaged
in providing products withm = parneular
economie environment that 15 subject to
risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating 1n other econ-
omic environments The Group’s primary
formar for segment reparung 1s business
segments and the secondary format is
geographic segments Thus 1s reflected by the
Group’s management and organisatonal
struciure and the Group's internal financial
reporung systems The Group’s subsidiartes
operate m two business segments Ceramics
Group and Other The Group's subsidianes
operate in five geographic segments UK,
Europe excluding the UK, North America,
Far East and the rest of the world

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
RECOGNITION

Revenue compnses the farr value of the
constderation recerved, or recervable, for the
sale of goods by the Group, m the ordinary
course of busmness, 1o external customers for
goods and services supplied, exclusive of
trade and volume discounts, sales rebates
and sales 1axes Accruals for estumated
rebates and volume discounts are recorded
in the same penod that the related sales are
recorded and are recogmsed as a reduction
of pross sales Rebate and volume discount
accruals are based on estrmates of the
amounts earned, or to be claimed, on the
related sales These estimates take 1o
consideration contracteal requirements,
known market trends and histonical data
Revenue and other ncome 15 recognused

as follows

(1} Sale of goods — wholesale
Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group enuty has delivered the products,
the sigmificant risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customer
2rd the collecrabiliry of the relared
recenable 1s rezsonably 2ssured

(1) Sale of goods — retar! sales through oromed
stores, concessions and outlets
Sales of goods are recogrused when
2 Group cnuty sells a proquct 1o the
consumer, net of sales taxes, discounts
and returns

{111) Retersd sales through the internet and mail
order catalogue
Sales of goods are recognised upon
shupment of the product to the consumer,
ne: of sales ~zaes, discounts and returrs
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(1v) Royalty income

Royalry income 15 racognised on an

accruals basis mn accordance with the

substance of the relevant agreements

Interest income

Interest income 25 accrued on 4 tune

basis by reference to the prmeipal

outstanding and a: the effecuve mnterest

rate over the period of expected

maturity

(v1) Property, plant and equipment transactions
Revenue from the sale of property, plant
and equipment 15 recogrused where
there 15 an unconditional and
irrevocable contract for sale

-~

(v

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The Anancial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the
currency that refiects the pnmary econorc
environment 1n which the enuty operates
(‘the functional currency’) The consoli-
dated financial statements are presented in
sterimg, which 1s the Company’s functional
and presentanion currency Transacuons

in foreign currencies are recorded at the
rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
trapsachion Monetary assets and habiines
denomnated m foreign currencies are
translated into the funcuonal currency at the
rate of exchange at the balance sheet date

All transianion differences are taken to the
consolidated income statement with the
excepuon of differences on foreign currency
borrowings that provide an effecuve hedge
against & net mvestment 1n a foreign entity
The effecuve portions are taken directly to
equity together with the exchange difference
on the net invesunent in the foreign enuty
unul the disposal of the net investment,

at which nme they are recognised o the
consohidated income statement Any
mneffecuveness 1s taken direciy to the
ncome statement

On conschdzuon, the results and cash flows
of subsidiary undertakings, whose functional
currency 1s no* sterling, are wanslated 1at0
sterhing at average exchange rates for the
year, and the relared balance sheets have
been translated at the rates of exchange
rujing at the balance sheet date Trarsla-ion
differences ansing op iranstauon of the
resulis of non-sterling sebsidiary
undertahungs &~ average rates, and on the
restazement of the opening net assets &t



closing rates, are dealt within 2 separate
foreign currency translauon reserve within
equuty, net of differences on related
currency borrowings designated 2s hedges
All other translation differences are taken
to the mcome statement

The cumulanve currency translation differ-
ences ansing prior to the IFRS transiuon
date (1 Apnl 2004) have been set to zero
for the purposes of sscertaiung the gain or
loss on disposal of 2 non-sterhing subsidiary
undertaking subsequent to 1 April 2004

INCOME TAX

Current tax  Curren* tax represents the
expected tax payable (or recoverable) on the
taxable profit or loss for the year using tax
rates enacted, or substanuvely enacied, at
the balance sheet date and tz2king into
account any adjustments ansing from pnior
years Taxable profit differs from the ner
profit as reported m the mcome statement
because 1t excludes 1tems of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible 1n
other years and 1t further excludes 1tems
thar are not taxable or deducuble Current
tax for the ¢urrent and prior pertods 1s, o
the extent unpatd, recogrused as a liabiliy
If the amount already paid 1 respect of
current and prior periods exceeds the amount
payable, the excess 1s recognised as an asset

Deferred tncome tax Deferred income

tax assets/ltabilines are provided, usmg

the hability method, on ali temporaty
differences apart from minal recognition
exempuons between the carrying amourtts
of assers and habihzes for financral
reporting purposes and their rax bases
Specifically, a deferred tax asset 15 recog-
rused for the carry-forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax creduts, only 10 the
extemt that 1t 15 probable that furure taxable
pront will be avalable sgainst which the
wnused tax losses and unused tas credns
can be utilised Deferred mcome ax assets
and habilities are not subject to discounung
and are measured at the 1ax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the asset
18 realised, or the Lisbility settled, based

on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted, or substan-vely enacted, by the
oalance sheet date

The carrying amoun: o deferred mcome
a3 zssess 15 reviewed at each balance sheet

dare and reduced to the extent that 1715 no
longer probable that sufficient 1axable profit
will be avatlable to allow all, or part, of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised
Deferred tax s not recogrused on the mmrnal
recogmition of goodwll, or the 1mtial recog-
nition of an asser or habihiry, 1n a rransacrion
which 15 not a business combiranon and
which at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounung profit nor taxable profit
In accordance with IAS 12, “Income Taxes”,
deferred income tax assets or babiities are
not recogmsed for temporary differences
assocteted with investments i subsidianes,
ta the extent thart the uming of the reversal
1s controlled by the parent Company, and 1t
1s probable that reversal will not occur in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax income or expense 1§ reported
in the Income statement 1f 1t relates to 1tems
that are reported in the income statement
For items that are recogtused 1n equury,

the related deferred tax 1s also recognused
n equity

DIVIDENDS

Final divsdends are recognsed as a hability
when the shareholders’ right to recaive the
payment 1§ established by approval at the
Annual General Meeting

Interum dividends are recogmsed 1n the
Group’s financial statements on a cash-
paid basis

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary and income shares are classified as
equury Costs directdy attnbuiable to the issue
of new equury shares or oprons are shown 1n
equiry as & reducnon of share premum

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
For equuty settled share-based payment
rransacuons (1 = the granting of share
opuons), the Groap measures the servicss
recerved and the corresponding ncrease n
equity 21 farr value, at the measurement
date (whuch 1s the grant date), using a
recogrused valuation methodology for the
pncing of financial nstruments (b.nosual
model} Giver that the share opnons
granted do not ves: unti! the completion of
2 specifisd penod of sernce 2nd are subject
to the realisauon of certamn performance
condi-mons, the fzi- value 15 detecmined on
the basts that the senices 1o be rexdered oy

employees as consideration for the granung
of share options will be recewed over the
vestng period, which 1s assessed as at the

date of grant

The share opuons granted by the

Company are subject 1o certamn market
based vesung condiuons as defined 1n TFRS
2 Non-market vesting condinons are not
taken mto account when estimatng the far
value of share opuons as at the date of
grant, such conditions are 1zken mnto
account through adjusung the number of
equuty mstruments icluded 1n the
measurement of the transacuon so that,
ulnmarely, the amount recognised equates
0 the number of equuty instruments that
actually vest The expense in the income
staternent i1n relation to share options
represents the product of the total number
of options expected to vest and the far
value of those opuons The resulting
amonunt 15 allocated to accounnng periods
over the vesung pertod Given that the
performance conditions underlymg the
Group's share opuons are non-market

n nature, the cumulative charge to the
1ncome statement is reversed only when the
performance condinion 15 not met or where
an employee 1 receipt of share options
relinquishes service prior to completion

of the expected vesting penod

The proceeds recerved by the Company on
the exercise of share options are credited 1o
share caprtal and share premrm

In line with the transitonal arrangements
set out m IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment”,
the recogmuon 2nd measurement prineiples
of this standard have been apphed only in
respect of share enutlements granted after
7 November 2002 and that had not vested
at 1 January 2005

The Group doss ret operace 2oy cesh-
settled share-based payment scnemes, or
share based payment transactions with
cash alternaaves, as defined 1n IFRS 2

RESEARCH EXPENDITURE
Expenaiture on research is charged 1o
the income staisment i the year 1n which

1t 15 weurred

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The purckase method of accounung 1s
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Group accounting policies under IFRS continued

employed by the Group in accounnng for
the acqusition of subsidiary undertakangs
The Group has availed of the exempuon
under IFRS 1, “Furst-time Adopuon of
Intemancnal Fnancal Reporung Standards”,
whereby busmess combimnauons prior to

the transinon date of 1 Apnl 2004 are not
restated IFRS 3, “Business Combinations”,
has been apphed with effect from the
transition date of 1 April 2004 and goodwill
amortisation ceased from that date

The cost of a bustness combination 1s
measured as the aggregate of the fair value
at the date of exchange of assets gven,
lLabilitres ncurred or assumed and equuty
mstruments 1ssued 1n exchange for control,
together with any duectly attnbutable
expense In the case of business com
binations, the assets and hiabihines are
measured at thewr provisional farr values

at the daze of acqusition Adjustments to
prowisional vatues allocated to assets and
Liablites are made within twelve months
of the acquisition date and reflected as a
restatement of the acquustiton balance sheet

MINORITY INTEREST

Transacuons with minones, where the
Group already has control Gver the &ntuty,
are accounted for using the economie enuty
method Any surplus or deficit ansing from
such mansactions compared to the carrying
amount of the minonties 15 adjusted against

TESCIVES

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising 1n respect of acquisiions
completed prior to 1 Aprd 2004 {“transtuon
dare™) 1s included art 1ts carrying value as
recorded under U K. GAAP Ir kne with the
provisions appheable 1o a first-ume adoprer
under IFRS, the accountng trearment of
business combinauons undertaken prior 1o
the transmion date has not been reconsidersd
in prepanng the opemng IFRS balance sheet
as at 1 April 2004 and goodwill amorusauon
has ceased with effect from the transinon
date Goodwill written off to resarves under
U X GAAP prior to 1 January 1998 has

not been remstared and 15 not included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss
on disposal of 2 subsidiary undertaking

Goodw1ll or acquisiuans 15 imtally
mezsured at cost bemng the excess of the
cost of the business combinanien over the

acquirer’s wterest in the net farr value of the
identifiable assets, habiliies and conningent
Labidmes Following wnal recogminion,
goodwill 15 measured at cost less any
accumulated imparmen: losses Goodwll

15 reviewed for impairment annually or
more frequently if events, or changes in
circumstances, indicate that the carrying
value may be imparred

As at the acquisiuor date, any goodwnll
acquired 15 allocated o each of the cash-
generating umts expectzd to benefit from
the combination’s synergies Impatrment

1s determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating umit to which
the goodwill relates Where the recoverable
amount of the cash generaning unit s less
than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss 1s recognised Where goodwill forms
part of a cash generatmg umnut and part of
the operation within thaz unut 15 disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operanon
disposed of 1s included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determimng
the gain or loss of the disposal Goodwill
disposed of in this circamstance 1s
measured on the basis of the relanve
values of the operation disposed of

and the poruen of the cash-gehefatng

urut retamned

INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL

An miangible asset is recogmused to the
extent that 1t 15 probable that the expected
furure economue benefits zttnbutable to the
asset will Aow to the Group and that it can
be measured rehably

(a) Trademark and brands
Trademarks and brands acquured
separately are recogmised at cost and
wtangible assets acquired m the course
£ 2 busimess corebinetion are
recogmused 2t fair velvs, being therr
aeemed cost at the date of acquisinon
Following unal recogrution, ade-
marks and brands, which have 2 fnite
life, are carned at cost less any
accumulated amorusation and
accumulated mmparment losses

The useful lives applied are
Trademarks 20 yea:zs
Brands 20 vears
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(b) Cortpurer sofnware ‘

Acquired computer software hicences
are recogrused on the basis of the costs
mncurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software These costs are
amortised over their esumated useful
Irves of four to six years Costs
associated with developing or
mantaming computer saftware
programmes are recogmused as an
expense as incurred

The amornsation of intangible assets 15
caleutated to wrte-off the carrying value of
imtangihle assets over therr useful Ives, ona
straight hine basis, on the assumpuon of
zero residual value

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
OTHER THAN PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are
not subject to amorttsation and they are
tested for ;mpaurment annually and
whenever there 1s an indicanion that the
asser may be impaired Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events, or changes
m circumstances, indicate that the carrying
zmount may not be recoverable

The rmpairment loss recogrused 1s the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds 1ts recoverabie amount
The recoverable amount 1s the higher of
an asset’s fair vatue less costs 1o sell and
value in use

For the purposes of assessing imparment,
assets aze grouped at the Jowest levels for
which there are separately idenufiable cash
flows {cash generaung unis) Where an asset
does not generate cash flows that are mndepen
den: from other assets, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash gener
sting unrr to which the asset belongs

If an impairment loss ts recognuised for

a cash generatung unut, i1 1s allocated 1o
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
of the wnt i the following order

(1) first, to redoce the carrving amounst
of any goodwill allocated to the cash
generatng unit, and

{u) then, o the other zssets of the wns pro
raia on the basis of tne carrving amount
of each asset in the unnt




If an asset’s fair value less costs to sell exceeds
Its carrying amount before the xmpairment
test of a cash generaung unit, then none of
the impairment loss arising on the umpair-
ment test 1s allocated to that asser

FENANCIAL ASSETS
The Group classifies 1ts financial assets in
the following categories

{a) at fair value through the mcome
statement,

(b) loans and recervables, and

{c) avatable-for-sale

The classificatron depends on the purpose
for which the financtal assets were acquired
Management determunes the classificaton of
1ts financial assets at ininal recogninon

(2) Financial assets ar fair value through the
tncome statenient
Financial assets at farr value through the
income szatement are finzncial assets
held for trading A financial asset 15
classified n this category 1if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling 1n
the short-term Dervauves are also
categorised as held for rading unless
they are designatéd as hedges Assers in
thus category are classified as current
assets The Group currently has no
financal assets determned at fair
value through the mncome statement

(b) Loans and recervables
Loans and recervables are non-
dervative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted 1n an active market They are
included 1n current assets, except for
matursies greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date These are classi-
fiad as non-current assets The Group s
ioans ard ~ecervebles comprse primanly
the following balance shee- caprions,
‘trade and other receivables’, ‘financial
assers” and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
The bzlance sheet capuon ‘financal
assets’ comprise primarily deposits

Availzble-forsale financial assers
Avalable for sale fnancial assets are
non-desrvatrves that zre exhes aesignated
s thes category or not classified I

sny of the other careganizs Thes are
mcluded 1 NON-CUITENT 255218 untess

—

(¢

management 1ntends to dispose of the
mvestmeryt wichin 12 months after the
balance sheet date The Group currently
has no avaitable-for sale financial assets

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recogrused on the trade-date -
the date on which the Group commuts to
purchzse or sell the asset Investments

are mmually recogmsed at fair value plus
transaction costs for all inancial assets not
carried at fau value through the income
statement Financial assets carned at farr
vatue through the income statement are
mitially recogrused at fair value and
transacuon costs are expensed tn the income
statement Financial assets are derecogmsed
when the nghts to recerve cash flows from
the mvestments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has rransferred
substantially all nisks and rewards of
ownership Avallable-for sale financial assets
and fnancial assets at fair value through the
income statament are subsequently carried
at farr value Loans and recevables are
carried at amorused cost using the effecave
mnterest method

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there 15 objective evidence
thar 2 financial asset or a group of financial
agsets 15 impaired

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost, or deemed cost, less accumulated
deprecianion and 1mpairment losses The
Group's properties 1n the United Kingdom
were revalued to fair value 1n 1997 and
are measured on the basis of deemed cost
being the revalued amount at the date of
revaluation less accumulated depreciauon
up ro the date of transition (1 Apzi 2004)

Droperty, plant and equipment, excluding
freshold lend, 2re dapracizred over ther
esamated useful economc hives, on a

straight-line basss, 25 follows

Freehold puldings
Leasehold bunlaings
Plant and equipment

25 to 50 years
Peniod of the lease
4 to 30 years

Subscauent expendirure relatng 1o an
exisung zsset s inchuded 1n an asset’s
cerrying value or recogused as a separais
asser, as 2ppropriate, only wher 1t

probable that furure economue benefics
associated with the item will flow 1o the
Group and the cost of the replaced item can
be measured reliably All other repair and
maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the fnanaal
period in which they are incurred

The profit or loss on the disposal of an asset
1s caleulated as the difference berween the
net sale proceeds and the net book value
and 15 meluded 1o the income statement

m the year the 1tem 15 sold

The residual vatue and useful economic
lives of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at each
balance sheet date

IMPAIRMENT ©F PROPERTY PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment

of Assets”, the carrying value of items of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment at each reporting date and
are subject to imparrment testing when
events, or changes it clrcumstances,
mndicate that the carrying values may not

be recoversble Where the cerrymg values
exceed the estumated recovérable amount
(being the greater of fair value less costs

1o sell and value in use), the assets or cash
generaung unuts are witen down to thewr
recoverable amount Fair value less costs

to sell 1s defined as the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset, or cash generatng
untt, in &n arms length transaction between
knowledgesble and walling parues, less the
costs which would be incurred on disposal
Value 11 use 15 defined as the present value
of the future cash flows expected 1o be
derwed through the continued use of an
asset, or cash generanng unyt, meluding
those anucipated to be realised on 1rs
eventual disposal In assessing vatue mm

, the esumered funure cash Aous are
discounted to their present value vsing a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the ume value of
money and any asset specific nisks The
esumates for future cash flows exclude cash
inflows or curflows atirtoutable to fnaneng
activities and income tax For an asset that
does not genesate largely independent cash
fows, the recovearante amount is determined
py refereace to the cash generaung un o
which the asset belongs
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if therr carryping value will be recovered
through a sale transzenon rather than
through continuing use This condinon ts
met if the sale 15 ighly probable, the asset
15 available for immediate sale 1n 1ts present
condition and management 1s commuitied to
the sale which should be expected 1o qualify
for recogmtion as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classificanon

Nor current assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of earrying value
and fair value less costs of disposal

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontnued operation 15 a component of
an entuty that erther has been disposed of,
or that 15 classified as held for sale, and (2)
represents a separate major kme of busmess
or geographucal area of operauons, (b) 1s
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or
geographucal area of operauons, or {c} 15

a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale

CAPITALAND REVENUE GRANTS
Capital grants are recognised withun the
financial statements only when there 15
reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the condiuons anaching 10
them and that the grants will be recesved
Capital grants are recognised 2s mcome over
the periods necessary to match themn with
the related costs which they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis
Revenue grants that become recervable
as compensauon for expenses or losses
already incurred, or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no further related costs, shall
be recogrused as income of the penzod in
which 1t becomes recevable

INVENTORIES

Inventortes are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value Cost1s based on
the weighied average cost formula In the
case of hmshed goods and work i progress
manufactured by the Group, cost comprises
the cost of direct materals, airect labour
and 2 proportion of manufaciuring overhead
based on nommal operaimg capacity In the
case of other 1nventornes, cost 15 ascertamned
br reference to purchase price phas Seight
and dury where appropnate

Net realisable value 15 the esumated
selhng price in the ordinary course of
business less the esumated costs to
complenion and esumated costs necessary
10 make the sale

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are minially recogmsed at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interes: rate method

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables ate recognised
mitrally at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effectrve interest method, less prowision for
mparment A provision for impawrment of
trade and other recervables 15 established
when there 1s objectuve emdence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the
recervabie The amount of the provision s
the difference berween the carrying amount
and the present value of future cash flows
The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced
throvgh the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss 1s recogrsed

in the income statement withun selling

and marketing expenses When a trade
recervable 15 dezmed uncollectable, 1t 15
written off against the allowance aceount for
trade recervables Subsequent recovenes

of amounts written off are credited against
selling and marketing expenses in the
1ncome statement

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and short-ierm deposits 1o the balance
sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form
part of the Grovp’s cash management are
incladed 25 2 component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the staiement
of cash flows

BORROWINGS

All loans and botrowings are munaliy
recorded at fair value of the consideranon
recewved net of transaction costs assocated
with the borrowing After aminal recognition,
interesi-bearing loans and borrowings

are subsequently measured at amorused
cost emploving the effective interest rate
method Amorused cost 1s calculated by
tahing 1016 ateount anv ssue costs and

2y discount or pramnum on serzlemen-
Borrowings ore clessifizd 25 current
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habiines unless the Group has an
unconditional night to defer settlement
of the Liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date

Gains and losses are recogrused 1o the
mncome statement when the habidines are
derecogmsed, as well 25 through the use of
the effective interest rare method Costs
1ncurred 1n relation to makewhole payments
are recognised m the mncome statement 1n
the year in which they are mcurred

Termuat:on costs are charged in the
income statement m the year in which
they are mecurred

FINANCING COSTS

Finaneing costs compnss interest on
borrowings, interest component of firance
leases and bank charges

Interest payablie on borrowings and the
interest expense component of finance lease
payments 15 calculated using the effective
mterest rate method Interest recetvable on
funds mvested 15 calculated on an accruals
basis using the effective rate method

LEASES

Where property, plant and equipment 1s
financed by leasing arrangements, which
transfers substantaally all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership (“finance
leases™), they are recogmsed at the incepnon
of the lease at the farr value of the leased
asset or, 1f lower, the present values of

the munumum lease payments The
corresponding obligations are shown in the
balance sheet as finance lease obhigations
Where the Group has entered inro lease
arrangements on land and buildings, the
lease payments are allocated berween

land and buidings and cach 15 assessed
separatelv 1o determine whetheritis a
firance or operating lease

Depreciauon on property, plant and
equipment 1s calculzted m order to write-off
the amounts recogmised over the shorter of
the estimated useful economic hives of the
indrvidual assets or the terms of the lease
The nnance charge 15 allocated 10 each
perntod during the lease term so as 10
produce 4 constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaming balance of the habthry

Profits or losses realised on sate 50d




leaseback transactions are deferred 1o the
balance sheei and are amorused through the
income statement over the hfe of the related

finance lease

VWhen the unavoidable costs of meeting
obligations under a lezsehold property
contract exceed the sconomic benefits
expected to be recerved under it, the lease
obhganon 15 defined as onerous and the
present obliganion under the lease 15
recognised and measured as a provision
Provision 1s made for management's best
estimate of the net autgoings through to the
termunation of the lease, discounted at an
appropriate discount rate

Leases where the lessor retains substanually
all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases
Operaung lease payments are recognised as
an expense i the income statement on a
straight line basis aver the lease term

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional stems are those items of mcome
and expense that the Group considers zre
mazer:al and/or of such a nature that the
separate reporung of the excepuonal item
helps to provide a better mdication of the
Group's undedying business performance
Events which may give nise to the
cJassification as excepuonal indlude the
restructunng of businesses, gamns or losses
on disposal of property, plant and equpment
and impairment of mntangble assets and
property, plant and equipment

PROVISIOMNS

A provision is recogmsed 1n the balance
sheet when the Group has 2 present legal ar
constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, 1t 15 probable that an outflow of
economic benefits would be required to
sertle the obhganon end 2 reliable esumare
¢an be made of the amount of the
obligatton Where the effect of the ume
value of money 15 matenal, the amouniof a
proviston shail be the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to
settle the obligation Where discountmng 1s
used, the increase tm the prowision due to
the passage of time 15 recogrused as a
nnancing cost

The Group recogruses & provision for restruc-
turing when 1t bas 2 deralled formal plas- for
the restructuning :dentfpng at leest

* the business or part of a business
concerned,

» the principal locations affected,

* the Iocations, function and approximate
number of employees who wil be com-
pensated for termunanng their services,

*+ the expenditures that will be undertaken,

* when the plan will be :mplemented and
there 15 a vald expectation on those
affected that 1t will carry out the
restructurmng by starung to rmplement
that plan or 2nnouncing its main features
to those affected by 1t

PEMNSIONS AND OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates 2 number of defined
benefit pension schemes, whieh reguire
contrbutions to be made 10 separately
adrministered funds The Group's net
vbligauons 1n respect of defined beneht
pension schemes are calculated separately
for each scheme by esumating, using the
projected unut method, m accordance watch
advice from independent qualified actuanes,
the amount of future benefits that
employees have earned 1n return for their
service 1n the current and prior penods
That benefit 15 discounted to determune 1ts
present value and the fair value of scheme
assets 1s deducted The discount rate
employed 1n determinng the present vahie
of the schemes’ Labilities 15 determined by
teference to market yelds at the balance
sheer date on high qualsty corporate bonds
of a term and currency consistent with that
of the associated pest-employment benefit
obligation Mortality estirnates are based on
standard nauonal mortality tables admusted
where appropriate to reflecs the Group's
own experience

The net surplus or debat ansing in the
Group's definea benefit pension schemes
are shown within ercher non-current assets
or liabilities on the face of the Group
balance sheer The Group has elecred 1o
avail of the opnon under 1AS 19, “Employee
Benefits”, to recognise post transition date
actuanal gamns and losses immedzatety 1n

the statement of recogmsed incomse

end expense

The esumated mcrease 1n the presen:
vzlue of defined benefit pension schemes’
habilines expected 1o arse from emplopee
service duning the peniod :s ctharged o
operaung loss The expeciad retum an tne

schemes’ assets and the interest cost on the
present value of the schemes’ habilities
ansing are ncluded in finance costs

If the benefits of a defined benefit plan

are improved, the pornon of the increased
benefit relanng to past service by employees
1s recogrused as an expense in the mcome
statement over the remaining average
working lives of the employess concerned
or to the extent thar the benefits vest
immediately, the expense 1s recognised
immediately 1n the mncome statement

In addiuen to defined benefit pension
schemes, the Group also operates a number
of defined contmbunon pension schemes
where obligations arising are recogmsed

as an expense 1 the mcome statement

as mcurred

The Group also has post-employment
medical aid obligations mn: respect of certain
employees The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the penod

of employment using an aceounnng
methodology similar to that for defined
benefit pension plans and determined by
independent qualified actuanes

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group uses dentvanve fnancial
msuments (prmeipally forward foraign
currency exchange contracts and oprions)
to manage 1is exposure to foreign currency
exchange risks ansing from esumated furure
currency receipts and payments {cash flow
hedge) In accordance with the Waterford
Wedgwood Group treasury policy, the
Group does not hold or i1ssue dervative
financial mstruments for trading or
speculatrve purposes

At the meepuon of a transaction entading
the usage of dervauves, the Group
documents the relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instroment s
well as 1ts nsk menagement objecuves and
strategy for undertaking vantous hedging
wransactions The Group also decuments
1ts assessmenst, both at the inception of the
hedging relanonship and subsequently on
an ongoing bas:s, of the effectveness of
the hedge 1n mitigaung foreign currency
exchange nisk ansing from esumated future
foreign currency receipts and payments

Forward foreigr: curreney exchange
contzacy are tuaally recogrised at far s ate
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Group accounting policies under IFRS continued

on the date the contract 15 entered 1nto and
are subsequendy re-measured at therr fair
value The best evidence of the fair value
of a forward foreign currency exchange
contract at minal recogrution is the
transacuon price (1e the faxr value of the
consideration gwen or recewved) The
subsequent fair value of forward feresgn
currency eachange contracts 1s calculated
by reference to current forward currency
exchange rates for contracts with simlar
maturity profiles and equates to the quoted
market price at the balance sheer date,
being the present value of the quoted
forward price

HEDGING

Cash flow bedges The Group uses cash
flow hedges (which hedge exposures to
fluctuauons n future cash flows derrved
from a particular risk associated with a
recogrused asset or habiity or a lughly
prabable future transacuon)

Where a denvative financial instrument 1s
designated as a hedge of the venabihity
cash flows of a recognused asset or liability,
or a highly probable forecasted transaction,
the effecuve part of any gain or loss on the
derrvanve finanual mstrument 15 recogmsed
as a separate compenent of equity with the
meffective portion being reported m the
income statement The associated gamns
and losses previously recognised n equity
are transferred to the income starement
contemporaneously with the recording,

in the ncome statement, of the hedged
transaction

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when

the hedging mstrument expires or 15 sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer
quakiies for hedge accounung At thar point
1n ume, zny cumnulative gain or loss on the
hedp.ng mnstrument racogrused 2s 2 separaie
component of equury 1s kept 1n equuty until
the forecast transacuon occurs If 2 hedged
transaction 1s no longer anticipated to occur,
the net cumulauve gain or loss recognised
as a separate component of equity 15 rrans-
ferred immediately to the income statement

Net rrvesiment hedges Where foreign
currency bozrowings provide a hedge agamnst
g ner mvestmen: 1 a foreign operanion,
fo-eign exchange differences are taken
direcily to 2 foreign cur-ency wanslanon

reserve (being a separate component

of equiry) Gains or losses ansmg on
meffecuve hedges are recogmsed
immediately i the income statement
Curmulative gamns and losses remain 1n
equuty unti disposal of the net mvestment
1n the foreign operation at which point the
related difference 1s transferred to the
mcome statemnent as part of the overall
gain or loss on sale

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Preparation of the consclidated financial
statements requires management to make
certain esnmates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and
habilities These mnclude, but are not lmited
to, the following areas

Inmpasrment of intangible assers The Group
tests whether intangible assets have suffered
any empairment, as required by IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” The recoverable
amounts of the net asset value of cash
generating units have been determined
based on value m use calculanons These
caleulations require the use of estimates

The calculations are mherently judgmental
and susceptible to change from period to
period because they requure the Group to
make assumptions about furure supply
and demand, future sales prices, the
achievement of cost savings, apphcable
exchange rates and an approprate
discount rate Further detail on the
assumpuions used in the calculations

1s provided 1n note 9

If the Group fauls to meet s forecasted
sales levels or fails 1o achieve antcipated
cost reductions, or if weak economuc
conditions prevadl i s primary markers,
the value mn use of a cash generaung von
1s nkely 1o be adversely affected

In the annual impairment test «f discount
rate applied to the cash flows 1s reduced by
1% this would have reduced the imparment
charge by £16 0 muhon

Imparrment of proverty, plant and eaurpment
In sccordance with IAS 36 “Impairment

of Assets”, the carrying value of nems of
propesty, plant and equipmen- are review ed
for impewrment 2- each repozung date and
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are subject to umpairment tesung when
events or changes mn circumstances indicate
that the carrying values may not be
recoverable Impairment 1s determined by
reference to the higher of fair value Jess
costs to sell and value in use, measured by
assessing future cash flows discounted using
appropriate nterest rates These future cash
flows are based on business forecasts and
are therefore mherently judgmental Future
events could cause the assumpuons used m
these mmpairment reviews to change with

a consequent adverse effect on the future
resuits of the Group

Penstons and other post-employment benghit
obligations Where the Group provides
pension plans for employees i the form

of defined benefit schemes an acruarnal
valuation of the schemes’ obligatuons and
the faur valuation of each of the schemes’
assets are performed annually mn accordance
with the requirements of IAS 19

The actuanal valuation ts dependent upon
a senes of assumpnions, the key ones being
future pensionable salary increases, pension
mcreases, discount rates, expected long
term rates of return on assers and mortaliy
estimates Mortality estimates are based on
standard national mortality tables, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Group’s
own experience The discount rates
employed m deterruning the present value
of the schemes’ Liabilivies are determined by
reference to market yields at the balance
sheet date on hugh quality corporate bonds
of a term and currency consistent with that
of the assocated post employment beneht
obligatior The returns on equities are set
by adding an equity risk premium to the
expected long-term rates of return on the
porifolo mix of government giirs

The selecuon of aifferent assumpuons
could affect the future results of the
Group Sensiuviry analysis 15 provided in
note 20 “Rearemant benefit obhganons”

Inventory The Group values 11s
manufactored fintshed goods and work

in progress at the lower of cost or net
realisable value If necessary, the Group
impazs its inventory for disconunued, slow
movirg and unmachetable products, based
upon assumprions zbou- future demand,
mazket condinions and disposal costs



Derermuning these assumptions requires
estmation of the outcome of future certain
events If actual events are more or less
favourable than those projected by
management, adjusIments to INVENtory
impairments may be required

Deferred tax Deferred tax assets are
recogrused to the extent that it 1s probable
that furure taxable profits will be available
agamst which the unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be uchsed The
Group esumates the most probable amournt
of future taxable profits, taking into
consideration apphcable tax legislation

1n the relevant junisdienon These
caleulations require the use of estimates

Going concern  The Group has prepared its
accounts on a going concern basis Further
details are described 1n note 1 supporting
thus basis Detads of Group financing
arrangements arc noted in the “borrowings”
and “related pargy” note
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| Basis of preparation of Group financial statements and going concern

The audned finanwal staterments of the holding Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 5 April 2008 are incorporated 1n the Group
financial statements

The presemtation currency of the Group financial statements 15 Sterling and the funcuonal currency and presentation currency of the parent Company
Waterford Wedgwood UK ple 15 Sterling

The Group has reported trading losses in recent years The Company 1s a whally owned subsidiary of Waterford Wedgwood plc The directors of
Waterford Wedgwood pic are committed to returning the Waterford Wedgwood Group to profitability and have made a number of key changes n
senior management to lead the operational and financial turnaround of the Waterford Wedgwood Group It 1s acknowledged that addiuonal funding 1s
required to complete the turnaround and the directors of Waterford Wedgwood ple are therefore considening a number of iniatrves of winch an as yet
undetermined combination is expected to be proceeded with

placement of the remainmg €33 4 million of the €100 milhon private placement of convertible preference shares announced in july 2007 (completed
n July 2008, prior to the approval of these financial staterments)

the potential 1ssue of In the region of €120 milhon of addiional equity In connection with which the Waterford Wedgwood plc directors have reason
to beheve that the Waterford Wedgwood Group's major shareholders will subscribe for an amount broadly equal to their pro-rata entitlements with
subscnption commitments to be sought mn respect of any entrilements not taken up by exisung shareholders,

the accelerated disposal of certain non-core assets

comptetion of the strategic review of Rosenthal AG and ts subsidiary companies { Resenthal } currently being conducted by JP Morgan Cazenove
including the potential sale of the Group s shareholding in Rosenthal and/or the sale of all or a part of rts assets and

~ ongoing discussions with the Waterford Wedgwood Group's banking syndicate regarding access to currently restncted avaltability under the €200
rmilion multi-currency credrt facility (note |9) and agreement on the use of proceeds from the disposal of certain non-core assets

In addrbion, the Waterford Wedgwood Group, under its new sermor management, 1s committed to tight management of working caprtal and centrol of
capital expenditures In particular, the Wateord Wedgwood Group 1s actively pursuing opportunriies to realise working capral benefits through a
managed programme of rwentory reduction undertaken in paraile! with key process improvernent projects

The directors of Waterford Wedgwood plc are satisfied that a requisie combination of the above inttiatrves can be successfully concluded to prowide
the Waterford Wedgwood Group and the Waterford Weagwood UK. pic Group with adequate finanaial resources to fund the planned cost reauction

measures and to meet working capital requirements for the foreseeable future However, fatlure to conclude on the requisite combination of these
inatives could compromuse the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Accordingly, the directors befieve that it continues to be appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concem basts

2 Analysis of operaung loss

_ Before Excepuonal
exceptonal items 1ems Total
£ Mullions £ Millions £ Millions
2008
Revenue 4147 - 4147
Cost of safes {2199 {9 8) (2297)
Gross profit/{loss) 194 8 (9 8) 1850
Selhng markeung and distnbution expenses (182 1) ©n (1842}
Admimustrauve expeases (42 4) - {424)
Ciher operating expenses (56 6} (627) (1193)
Othe- oparatng incoms | 4 a7 21
Operanng loss (86 9} (71 9) {158 8)
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2 Analysis of operating loss continued

Before
exceptional wems Exceptional Total
£ Milhons 1tems £ Millions
Reclasstfied £ Millions Reclassified

2007

Revernue 437 | - 4371
Cost of sales (223 6) (14 (2250)
Gross profi/(loss) 2135 (14) 2121
Seliing markeung and distnbulion expenses (1867) 25 (1892}
Admimistrative expenses (38 6) 09 (39 5)
Orther operatng expenses 04 79 83
Cther operating income 79 1k 198
Operaung loss (4 3} {0 8) (51)

The 2007 income statement captions have been reclassified to accord with the current year dlassifications

The follewng ttems have been induded in armving at operating loss

2008 2007
Notes £ Millsons £ Milhons
Revenue 4147 437 1
Less pre-exceptional operatng costs
Change in inventones of finisned goods (136) (55)
Staff costs (1333) (1363)
Intangble asset amarusation 9 (1 8} 20)
Depreciztion of property, plant and equipment 10 (106} (132)
Operating lease rental - plant and equipment (34 (33)
— others (13 n (I35)
Gther operating Costs (3258) (257 6)
Operaung loss before excepnonal items (869) (43)
Excepucnal items 4 79 {08)
Operaung loss (158 8} (51}
2008 2007
£ Muhons £ Mulliens
Operaung loss for the year 15 staied after charging
Auditoms remunerauon — audit Q7 07
— taxauon services 02 04
— other assurance services 02 0l
il 12

Fees said to PricewaternouseCoopers by the Company and its LU K subsigianes in respect of non-audit serwices amounteo o £86 500 {2007 £43940)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3 Segmental report

The Group's business 15 drvided into two pnimary segments Ceramics Group mdudes the manufacture and distnpution of ceramics products by
Wedgwood Royal Doulton and Rosenthal and the distrbution of crystal products in certan markets Other pnmarily includes the distnbution of

Waterford Crystal product in the USA
Inter-s=gment transactans are entered into under normal commercial terms and condtions

Operating profit/loss 15 the segmental measure reviewed by the chief operating deasion maker Unallocated overhead costs such as those incurred by the
head office are included under the heading unallocated costs

Segment assets cornprse total current and non-current assets and for each class of business or geograchic segment it incudes inter-company recervables
and exciudes investments in subsidiary undertakings

Segment hiabilies compnise total current kabilivies and non-current labilmes and, for each class of business, t includes inter-company payables

By class of business

Ceramics Group Other Unallocated costs Total Group

2008 2007 2008 2607 2008 2007 2008 2007

£Millons £ Mibhons £Milbons £Milhons £ Milhons £Milhons £Mdhons £ Millons

Total segment revenue 3306 3436 B58 958 - - 4164 439 4

inter segment revenue (n 23) — - - (17 (23)
Revenue 3289 3413 858 958 - - A14 7 4371

Operanng (loss)/profit before exceptional stemms (84 8) (13 9) (02) 1.2 (19) B84 (86 9) 43)

Less exceptional ems (70 3) (08) (16} - - - 719) (08)

QOperatng (loss)/profit after exceptional rrems (1551) (14 7) (18) 12 (19 84 (158 8) 51)

Net finance costs {185) (17 4)

Income tax iIncome/{expense) 59 ©2)

Loss for the year (171 4) (22 7)
Property piant and equipment additons 68 76 08 04 - - 76 80
Depreciation and amortisation [R:] 144 06 08 - - 124 152
Intangible asset addinons 02 02 - - - - 02 02
Impairment of property plant and equipment 34 79 |4 - - - 48 79

Impa—™et of (iangibles 5729 - - - - — 579 -

Toral assets Totel habimes  Net {liabilmes)/assers

2008 2007 2008 2067 2008 2007

ZMidhons £Midlions £ Mibons £ Midhons £Mihons £ Mibons

Cerarmucs Group 3237 3585 @179 (6429) (3952) (284 4)
Oter 381 525 D) &9 37 56
Unallocated assets/(havifibes) 3254 2782 (3927 (297 4) (683) {152)

lntrz-group elirinations (3127) {263 4) 3137 2534 - -

3725 4258 (806 3) {683 8) (433 8) (258 0)
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3 Segmental report continued

By geographical segment
Revenue 1s 2llocated based on the country in which the customer 1s based and total assets, addiions to property ptant and equipment and intangible

asset addmions are based on where the assets are located

Property, plant and Intangible assat
Revenue Total assets equipment additions additions
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£Milhons £ Milbons £Mihons £Milhons £Mikons £Milons £Muhons £ Milkons
Europe excluding United Kingdom 1089 1101 1048 897 26 36 02 02
United Kingdom €56 738 2165 28312 (] 17 - -
North America 1588 1742 503 1332 14 09 - -
Far East 46 8 496 41 4 415 15 14 - -
Rest of the world 346 294 158 116 0 04 - -
Intra-group elminations - - (963) (1334) - - - -
414 7 4371 3725 425 8 76 80 0.2 0z

4 Exceptional items

The following exceptional {costs)/gains have been (charged)/credited to the income staternent

2008 2007
Notes £ Milhons £ Milhons
Redundancy and integration costs (0] 29 &N
Imparrment of property plant and equipment () 48 {79)
Gan on sale of property, plant and equipment {ui) 07 Il
Impairment of intangible assets (v} (57 9) -
Pension curtalment ) - 108
Relezse of surplus restructunng provision {w) - 13
Exceprional wems charged to operaning loss (719) (08}
Exceptional tax income {vir) 69 -
(65 0) (08)

Total exceptional 1tems

(i} As part of s continuing Inbatve to lower operatng costs the Group incurred a cnarge of £9 9 milhon (2007 £6 1 milhon) relating to redundancy
and Integration costs

() Imparment charge of £4 8 mlhon (2007 £79 millon) ansing from: 3 review of the carrying value of plant and eaqutpment & the Groups
manufacturing and distributton faciites in tne United Kingaom Germary and the Unrted States This rtem 1s inctuded within other operating
expenses The impairment cha-ges have been calculated n accordance with 1AS 36, which ooes not aliow the inclusion n cash flow projections, of
benefits ansing from future restructuring acivities 10 wWikch an entiy Is not commied

(m) Profits ansmng from property activties amounting to £07 milion (2007 £1 | milhon) R

{v) Imparment charge of £57 9 milion (2007 £ni miflion) 2nsing from 2 review of the carmying value of intangole zssets associated with the Groups
Cerarmics business This item (s included witnn other onerating expenses The imoarment charges have been calculated in accordance with 1AS 38,
which doss not aliow tne melusion 10 casn flow projecuans o benefics ansing from future restructuning actvues to which an entity 1s not commited

{v) Gan ansing Trom ine curtalment o, pension benefits of the Weagwooo Group Peasion Plas amourming 18 Zral rifhion (2007 £10 8 milson}

{w} Release of surplus restruciuring provision eméunting te £nil milhon (2007 £1 3 millon) ’

fwi} Release of & deferrea tax o™ £6 9 milnon {2007 £nil milion) assotiaten with the imamrment of assets
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

S Finance costs

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Milhors
Interest payable and similar charges (41 (126)
Interest payabie to Waterford Wedgwood Group companies (16) (16)
Interest on pension scheme obiigatons tn excess of expected rewrm on pension schemes’ assets (21 @on
Interest element of finance leases payments (13} {15)
(19 1) (17 8)
6 Employees
2007
2008 Number
Number Reclassified
Average number of persons employed
Production 2506 3,197
Distribution sales and marketing 3527 3773
Administratron 496 519
6,929 7,489
The 2007 headcount numbers have been reclassified to accord with the current year classifications
2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Milhions
Payroll costs of those employees
Wages and salaries 11593 1180
Social welfare costs 141 149
Retrement benefit costs/{income) (note 20) 54 [CE)]
135 4 127 6
Retirement benefit cost/(income; apove induoes an ameunt of £2 1 miion (2007 £2 | mihon} which s recorded i nnante costs anc £l —vihon (2007

£10 8 million) recorded as excepuonal income
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7 Directors' remuneration and other contracts

The remuneration in refation to directors who held office for any part of the year 1s as 1oflows

2008 2007

Exccutve Non-executrve Executve Non-executive

Directors Dhrectors Directors Directors

£ 000 £ 000 £00¢ £ 000

Fees - 5 - 10
Chther rernunerauon 705 - 646 -
Benefits in kind 20 - 20 —
Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes 6l - 40 -
Ex-gratia pension paid to a past Director 7 - 7 -
793 5 713 10

Directors’ remuneration 1n currencies other than Sterling is translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing in each of the years
Lady O'Redly and Peter John Goulandns, warved their fees of £5000 in each year respectively

There are two directors to whom benefits are acoruing under defined contributron pension schemes

The highest paid Director recened total emoluments of £328,000 (2007 £307 000) and had 2 contnbution of énil (2007 £nil) to a defined benefit

pension scheme arrangement.

The mformanon with regard to Directors share aptions is set out in the Report of the Directors
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

8 Income tax

2008 2007
£ Mihons £ Malions
Current taxation
Based on {oss for the year
ol

Carporaton tax -
Overseas taxation 07N (13)
Over provision in respect of pricr pencds

Corporausn axauon - 06
o7 {0 6)
Deferred tax
Release of deferred tax associated with impared assets 59 -
On temporary difierences {03} 04
Income tax meome/(expense} 59 {02}

No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidianes 1o the extent that the Group has control over the tming of these
remittances as these are reinvested in the business and thus no taxation 1s expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future

The overall taxation charge In future years will also be dependent upon any changes in the undertying assumptions made for the recognmien of deferred
tax assets representing the future value of current taxation losses

The following tabie reconcrles the income tax income/{expense) for the year reported in the ncome statement to the theoretical iIncome tax income !
that would resutt from applying the standard rete of UK corporation tax to the loss before tncome tax. .

2008 2007

£ Mithons £ Mallions

Loss before mcome tax (177 3) (22 5)
Nouonal UK corporation taxation crednt at 30% (2007 30%) 532 68
Different taxatron rates in overseas operations 22 03
Imparrnent of intangible assets property plamt and equipment (4 (20)
Tax losses not utilsed (364) (95)
Other tming differences ot 29
Cthe~ permanent differences (18) 07
Qver provision in respect of prior pernods - 08&
59 02}
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9 Intangible Assets

Goodwll Brands Software Total
£ Millions £ Mdhons £ Miulions £ Milhons

2008

Cost !

At | Apnl 2007 698 292 33 1023
Additions - - 02 02
Translation adjustment - 03 06 09

At 5 Aprl 2008 LER-S 295 41 103 4

Accumulated amortisation and impatrment

At | Apnl 2007 {i16) (53) 23 (192)
Amortisauon®* - (14 {@4) (18)
Imparment (note 4) {579) - - (57 9) ‘
Translabon adjustment - (03) 4 07)

Ar 5 April 2008 (69 5) (70} (31) (79 6)

Net book value

At | Apnl 2007 562 239 10 B3 1

At 5 Apnl 2008 03 225 10 238

2007

Cost

At | Apni 2006 698 297 32 1022
Adduons - - 02 02
Translation adjustment - - ©n 01)

At 31 March 2007 698 292 33 1023

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

At | Apnl 2006 (11 6) 39 (18} (173)
Amortisaion® - {14 (06) (20)
Translahon adjustment - - 0l 0l

A1 31 March 2007 (116) (53) {23) {15.2)

Net book value

At | Aprid 2006 582 253 | 4 849

At 31 March 2007 582 239 10 831

»Brands amorasation of £} 4 million (2007 £+ 4 million) and amorusanon of sofware costs of £04 million (2007 £06 milion} has been charged to

administrative expenses

The rernaining unamorused life of the brands at 5 April 2008 15 17 yaza-s

2008 Anwa Repoe & mrcous Weie—od Weageess U ol 28
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9 Intangible Assets continued

Cash-generaung units
Goodwill at 3} March 2007 related to the excess of the consideraton paid over the far value of dentdiable net assetsfiabiirties anising on the acquisition

of Royal Daulton i January 2005

ocated to cash-generating unts (" CGU" or 'CGUs ) for the purposes of
gwood/Royal Douiten  In the prior year the CGU
"Wedgweod/Royal Doulton CGU s considered

The goodwill generated through the Royal Doulton acquisition has been alt
impasrment testing that are expected to benefit from the business acquisiion Tius CGU was "Wed

was ‘Royal Doutton”, however given the integrauon of the Wedgwood/Royal Doulton operations the
more appropriate at 5 Apnl 2008

The CGUs represent the lowest level within the Group at which the associated goadwill s monrtored for Intemal management purposes and are not
farger than the primary and secondary segments determined i accordance with IAS 14 Segment Reportng”

A summary of the allocation of the carrying value of goodwll by geographic region and wrthin segment 15 2s follows

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Milliones
Ceramics Group
Unrted Kingdom - 580
USA 03 02 '
03 582

The imparment charges have been calculated in accordance with 148 36 which does not allow the inclusion 1n cash flow projections of benefits ansing

from future restructuring activities to which an entity ts not commrted

Impairment tesung methodology results

The Group tests goodwill and other intangible assets annually for smpairment 1f there 1s an indication that they may be impaired ‘

The recoverable amount of the CGU' 1s determined based oa a value 1n use computabion Where the value in use exceeds the camying value of the
CGU the asset 15 not impaired where the carrying amount exceeds the valug i use 2 provision for imparment 1s rassed Estimates used in this process

are key judgmental esttmates in the financial statements

The cash flow forecasts employed for the value n use computation are exiracied from management's budgets and forecasts for a three yea- penod
approved by sero” management and the Board of Directors

A growin rate of tour percent has been used in determaning value in use beyond the period covered by the budgets and forecasts

nts the present value of the future cash flows discounted & 20 approprate discount rate to

The recoverable amount stermmung from this exercise represel
& 10 use the same discount rate

the CGU peing assessed for imparment, a discount rate of 14% (2007 13%) was used The Group considers & epproprat
for each cash generating uni 25 the cost of caprial and assocate nsks of the business are inter-iinked For the purpose of impairment testing unallocated

Group Sverheads Frve peen allocared to CCUs based on revenus
Applying the above techniques has resulted (n an impairment charge aganst intangidle assezs o1 £57 9 million wicn nas beer incruaed 2s part of

excepuonal tems

The values zpphed 1o each of the key assumptions are denved from a combrmation of internal and external factors based on histonical expenence and
take into account the stability of cash fiows typically associated with these pusinesses Key assumptions inclyde manzgement s

Watemomc Wesp ooz UK oo 2008 Arel2r Rapont & ACTOUNTS




9 intangible Assets continued

estimates of future profitabifity
+ estimates of future exchange rates

« revenues generated from new product inruatives
« trade working capral investment needs and

- benefits of existing restructunng niuatives (No benefits from future planned restructuning far which no prowsion has been made of 5 April 2008,

have been consiaered }

The 5 year term of the discounted cash flow model 1s 2 significant factor in determining the value in use of the cash-generaung units and has been
arrved at taking account of the Group s financial position s established history of earmings and cash flow generation and rts ability to pursue and

Integrate valug-enhancing acquisions

10 Property, plant and equipment

Lznd and Buildings
Plant and
Freehoid  Longleasehold  Short leasehold cquipment Total
£ Millions £ Millions £ Milhons £ Mitlions £ Millons
2008
Cost
At | Apnl 2007 640 126 76 1976 2818
Addtions 07 - Gl 68 76
Assets held for sale {15) - - - (5
Disposals {06} - - (179) (18.5)
Translation adjustment 56 - 02 135 193
Ar 5 Aprl 2008 68.2 126 79 200 0 2887
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At | Apnl 2007 (355) " {58) (159 Q) (2020)
Deprecration charge [{RY)] (G4} {04) (88) (106)
Assets held for sale (] - - - I
Disposals 05 - - 176 181
imparment {note 4) (0 &) - (07) (35) 48
Amounts reclassified 03 - - 03 -
Translation adjustment (47) - (02) (1 4) (163)
At 5 Aprd 2008 {40 5) (21) (71) (164 B) (214 5)
Nez pook valug
At | Apnl 2007 285 109 18 386 728
Az 5 Apol 2008 277 05 08 352 4.2

2508 An-ua Pase— & Aco.ms Wimempra Vveagweoco JX pie
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|0 Property, plant and equipment continued

Land and Buildings
Plamt and
Freehold  Long leasehold  Short leaschold cguipment Total
£ Milkons £ Millions £ Milbons £ Millzons £ Milhons
2007
Cost
Al Apnil 2006 863 126 85 235 3109
Additions 04 - 03 73 80
Disposals (0%} - 04 (262) (275)
Translation agjustment (I8 - {08} 70 (96)
At 31 March 2007 64 0 12 6 76 197 6 2818
Accumuiated depreciation and impairment
At ! Apnl 2006 (329) (13) &4 (1734} (2140}
Depreciation charge {10} (04} o4 (14 (132
Amounts reclassified 30 - - 31 -
Disposals o7 - 04 249 260
Impairment charge - - - 79 79
Transtation adjustment 08 - 06 57 71
At 3] Mzrch 2007 (35 5) (17) (58) (159 0) (202 0)
Net bock value
At | Apnl 2006 334 13 21 50| 569
At 31 Merch 2007 285 109 18 386 798

Mo depreciation 1s charged on freehold land with 2 book value of £5 7 mifiion (2007 €5 & milhon)

included in property plant and equipment at net book value are amounts In respect of assets held under finance leases by Group companies
as foliows

2008 2007
£ Mihons £ Miflions
Long lezsehold property 105 109
Plant and equipmant 56 60
161 69
Deoreciation and imoairment in 1espect of assets held under finance leases by Group comparies 15 as follows

2008 2007
£ Milnons £ Milhiors
Depreciation 1n respect of finance leases 16 15

Irnpairment 1n respect of finance leases 0l -
17 15

Wetema—c Weogwroor UK piz 200€ Annua Renc & Accoamis



|0 Property, plant and equipment continued

Lmpairment testing
The Group tests mparment if there s an Indicauon that assets might be impaired Testng 15 performed at a CGU level The CGU s represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the associated property plant and equipment 1s monitored for intemnal management purposes and are not larger than

the primary and secondary segments determined In accordance with IAS |4 “Segment Reporting

The recoverable amaunt of the CGU's 1s determned based on 2 value n use computauon Where the value i vse exceeds the carrying value of the

CGU the asset 15 not impaired, where the carrying amount exceeds tne value in Use, a provision for (mpairment Is rased Estmates used in this process
are key judgmental esumates in the financial siatements The Group does not imparr property plant and equiprment to below their open market value

The cash flow forerasts employed for the value in use computation are exdracted from management’s budgets and forecasts for a three year period
approved oy senior management and the Board of Directors

A growth rate of four percent has been used in determining value in use beyond the penod covered by the budgets and forecasts

The recoverable amount stemming from this exercise represerts the present value of the future cash flows discounted at an appropnate discourt rate 10
the CGU being assessed for impairment a drscount rate of 14% (2007 13%) was used The Group considers it appropriate to use the same discount rate
for each cash generating unit as the cost of captal and assaciate nisks of the business are inter-inked For the purposes of impairment tesung unallocated

Group overheads have been allocated wo CGUs based on revenue

Apphying the above technigues, the foliowing imparment has been recognised

2008 2007

£ Milhons £ Milhons

Ceramics dwvision — United Kingdom 240 79
Ceramics division — Germany | 4 _
Other — USA | 4 -

48 19

The impairment charges nave been caculated n accordance wrth IAS 36 which does not aliow the nclusion, 1n cash flow projections of benefits ansing
from future restruciuning acivbies 1o which an entity 13 not cormmned

“The values apphed to each of the key assumptions are derved from a combinanon of mternal and external factors based on histonical expenence and
take o account the stabrity of cash flows typically assooated with these businesses key assumptions include management s

estimates of future profitability
revenues generated from new product innuatives

trade working capital invesument needs and
benefits o exstng restrucunng Intaives (No benefits from future planned restructunng for which no provisian has been made at 5 April 2008 have

.

been constgered )

The 5 year term af the discounted cash fiow mouoel 1s 2 significent factor in determining the value 1n use of tne casn-generating units and hizs Deen
arrved at taking account of the Group s finanwal posruon its established nistory of earmngs and casn flow generauon anc s aoiliy to pursue and

integrate value-enhancing acquistions
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Notes to the consolidated financial

Il Financial assets

statements

2008 2007
£ Miliions £ Mibons
Balance at | Apnl 13 15
Additions 02 -
Transiaton agjustment Q02 {02)
Bzlance a1t 5 April 2008 and 31 March 2007 17 13
|2 Inventories
2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Millions
Raw materals 153 It5
Work in progress 190 175
Firished goods 1290 1154
1633 144 4
The estimated replacement cost of inventories 15 not materially dfferent from the above amaounts
I3 Trade and other recervables
2008 2067
£ Milhons £ Millions
Due within one year
Gross receivables 631 599
Prowision for rmparrment of trade recenables {30) (34)
Amounts owed by Waterford Wedgwood Group companies 248 362
Ctner recenvaoles 63 70
Prepaymenis end accrued income 72 57
98 4 105 4
Due after more than one year
Trade recenvables 0l -
Other recevables - 02
g1 0.2

The following tzble sets forth the ageing of wrade recenvables oy reference 1o tne caymeni terms speciied in the 1erm and condison estadlished between
g going ¥ ! o

the Wateorc Weogwood business operzuions and i's cuslomers togetner witn related orovisions for imparrment or irede receivadles

3z Werano~ Weogwood UK ok 2008 An-uzl Geoz— & ~zcours




[3 Trade and other recetvables contnued

2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Milhons
Gross trade recenables £32 599
Provisions for imparment of trade recenvables (30) (34
Total trade receivables net of impairenent provisions 60.2 565
of which.
Nerther past due nor impaired 439 398
Past due but not impaired
Past due not more than one month 98 62
Past aue more than cne month and not mare than two months 27 49
Past due more than two manths and not more than three months 14 |8
Past due more than three months and not more than six months Il L9
Past due more than six months 13 19
Total trade recetvables net of impairment provisions 60.2 565
The followtng summanses the movement in provisons for imparment of trade recenables
2008 2007
£ Mihons £ Milhons
At | Apni (34 (56
Charge to the income statement (05) 0n
Recewables written off during the year as uncallectable {0 14
Transtzion agustment 1) 02
(3 0) (3 4)

At 5 Apol 2008 and 31 March 2007

Promsions for imparment of trade recenvables are established based upon the difference between the recervable value and the esumated net collectable

amount arrved at by reference 1o historical loss experences Debtors who are displaying signs of significant financial difficutts

es such as probability that

the debtor will default, delinquency in payments or the need for financial reorganisauon are considered ndicators that a prowvision for Impairment may be

required

Trade recenvables nclude amounts denorminated in the follewing major currencies

2008 2007

£ Midlions £ Millions

Euro 3% 199

Sterling 80 109

LIS Dollar 170 170

Canaamian Dollar 37 25

Auvgrzlian Dollar 20 16
Yen 68 &0
Other currenaes 18 1§
632 599

I00E mnnud Sans— & ATIoomTs VYIie ot Weggwood Jhopi 35



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| 3 Trade and other receivables continued

Trade recevables comprise a large widespread customer base Wholeszale customers are firstly assessed for credrt quality viz independent raungs If such
ratings are not available the nisk 1s assessed taking into account s financial position past experience and other factors Customer credit mits are

regularly monitored

The standard credit terms offered to customers are 30 days but under certain circumstances this may ¢change 1& poor credrt quality may require cash on
dehvery or where goods take a lengthy ume to deliver addruonzt credit may be given

Sales to retall customers are settled In cash or by majer cred cards The cash collected in the concession shops the Group operate is retained by the
store operators and remitted on average 30 days after month end

At 5 Apnl 2008 the largest recervable balance due from a singte customer was £52 million (2007 £4 5 mulhon)

The carrying value of trade and otner recevables approximate their far value

[ 4 Trade and other payables — current liabilities

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Millions
Trade payables — within terms 252 293
Trade payables — outaide terms 161 240
Tozal trade payables 413 533
Armounts owed 10 Waterford Wedgwood Group companies 5138 3901
Payable for taxation and social welfare 41 g
Other payables 70 66
Accrued habilmes 128 119
578 8 465 7

Payables for taxauon and socal welfare included above are as follows
lncome tax deducted under PAYE 15 14
Pay related socal insu~ance 06 06
Value 2ddeg tax payable 17 15
Other tax=c Q3 03
41 38

The carmang value of Trade ang otner payaDies approxamale tneir fair value
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!5 Trade and other payables — non-current Labilities

2008 2007

£ Milhons £ Millions

Accruals and deferred income 56 Eq]
Other payables - 02
56 32

|6 Finance lease obligations

Present value of mimmum

Mimmum lease
lease payments

payments
2008 2007 2008 2007
£ Milhens £ Mulhons £. Milhons £ Milions
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 26 23 24 21
Two to five years 94 83 B9 84
After five years 264 280 70 79
384 396 183 18 4
Less Futuie finance charges {2011) 212 - -
Present valué of munrmum lease payments 183 184 183 18 4
Less Amounts due for settlement witnin |2 months (current habiities) 24) 220
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months (non-current habihnes) 159 163
Group lease obligations are denominated Iin the following currencies
2008 2007
£ Mihons £ Millions
Euro 25 30
terling 157 154
Us Daollar ol -
183 18 4

h 1s the Group s policy to jease certain assets under finance teases Lease 1erms vary 1rom ten 1o Thirly years Rentals are typically fixed for the first five
years followed by a fixed uplift at the end of tne fifth year Subsequent rent reviews are upwaras only and are reviewed every five ysars Rental
agreements conzain the usugl tenant repair raintenance and insurance ooligations For tne tweive montns to S Aprit 2008 the average effective
bo-rowang rate wes 82% (2007 B2%) The Group s obligauons unde- finance leases are secured oy the lessors mile to the leased assets

3005 armgl Repses o Accourts WereTore bweogwooo Uk dic
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| 7 Provisions for other habilities and charges

Resguctunng Onerous Other
provision contract PrOVISIONS Total
£ Mihons £ Mulwons £ Mithions £ Millions
2008
At | Apni 2007 64 76 08 148
Charged to income Statement as an exceptional nem 59 - - 29
Utilised during the year 83) 06 - 89
Translation adjustment (413 - [¢h 07
At 5 Apnl 2008 86 70 09 165
Less Amounts due for settlement within 12 months {current iiabilies) (86) (n {03) (100)
Amounts due for sertlement after 12 months (non-current habilities) - 59 06 65
Restructuning Omerous QOther
provision contract Provisions Total
£ Milhons £ Milhons £ Millions £ Milhons
2007
At | Apnl 2006 153 89 08 250
Charged to income statement as an exceptional tem 61 - - 61
Credited to income statement as an exceptional tem (13 - - (13
Credrted to mcome statement as an operating Income - 08) - (0 8)
Utlsed duning the ysar (134 103) - (139)
Translation adjustment (03) - - (03)
At 31 March 2007 64 76 08§ 148
Less Amounts due for settlement within 12 months {curvent habilives) {53) (1n oD (68)
Amounts due for settlement afrer 12 months (non-current labihities) 09 65 06 80

Restructunng provision
The prowsions relate to rrevecable commitments under varous restructuning programmes throughout the Group The majority of the provision at

5 Apnl 2008 relates to a restructuring programme at Rosenthal which ivolves the redistribution of production between two factones m Germany,
\ncreasad autormnation and further outsourcng of certain labour intensive producis The Group expects the provision to be fully utihsed within |2 months

of the balance sheet date

Onterous contract
This prowision is 1o cover costs associated with 2n onerous warehouse and distnbuuon contract assaciated with the Group s warehouse facility in Stone,

tafforashire Englang and s made on 2 net present cost basis The ONErous contract expires in 2015

QOrber provsions
These provisions prinapally zompnse cbligenens relating *o lorg
such obliganons Gased SN PaSt EXPEnence 25 2 gIde AINOUEN The expectad TMINg of any Dayments s uUNCerTain. SsumMates

service awards Prowsions have been established for the anucpated cost of honounng
have been made of the

likely cash proile
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|8 Deferred taxation

The amount of deferred 1ax asset/(liapiity} recogmised in respect of each temporary difference is as follows

Accelerated Other
capital Retrement Other deferred
allowances obliganons deductrons®  deducnons™ Tax losses Prowision Total
£ Miliians £ Mithons £ Mithons £ Malhons £ Milions £ Mihons £ Milhons
At | Aprl 2006 100 2686 (140) 162 1201 (1662} 73
Credit/(charge) to income statement 93 (145) (05) (39) 175 {7 5) 04
Jranslation adjustment {@n - 07 (13) {l6) 13 -
Ar 31 March 2007 12.2 121 (13 8) 110 1360 (171 4} {69)
Credrt/(charge) to income statement 12 04 70 16 384 412) 66
Translation adjustment ©r 02 - 05 39 (42 03
At 5 Aprid 2008 203 119 (68) 131 1783 (216 8) -
*Other deductions anse primanly on finite ife iIntangibles and inverttor y reserves in the USA
#* Deferred deductions Include amounts refating to restructuning provisions and accounts recervable reserves
The above net deferred tax liability 15 recorded in the balance sheet as follows
2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Milhons
Non-current deferred income tax assets - 05
Deferred income tax habilties - 74
- (69}
As at 5 April 2008 the amount and expiry of unused tax kosses refiected in the above analysis 1s as follows
Amount of
tax losses
£ Millions
Within | year 03
Between | and 2 years 03
Between 2 and 3 years 16
Batween 3 and 4 years 19
Other expiy 238
inoefinne 5775
605 4

As disclosed zoove patenual deferred tax 2ssets of £2168 milion (2007 £171 4 mithon) ansing onncpally from wraaing losses, pensson devicns and
restructunng charges have not been recognised The Directors beheve there 1s currently insufficient ewdence 10 suppoit the recogniion of 2 geferred

profits generated i the same 1ax groups ang 1ax nsdicions in winch ey were incurred

0L arnvzl Resar & AscouTs Watedord Waogesos VWX D
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

|9 Borrowings

2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Millions
Repayable 2s follows
Between one and two years 28 -
Between two and five years 1227 1120
1255 1120
Splrt of borrowings between
- Secured 1194 106 6
— Unsecured [ 54
1255 112 ¢
There are no loans repayable by installments where any instaliment 1s due after five years
The following are included in fong and medium term borrowings
2008 2007
£ Milkons £ Milhons
Mutti-currency credr faciity 932 834
Mezzanine term loans 226 229
Subordinated debt 61 54
Term loan 36 03
1255 1120

Muln-currency credi faciinty and mezzanine term loans
The mults-currency credrt facility and the mezzanine term loans provide maemum potential loan faalites to the Waterford Wedgwood Group of €200

rmillion and US560 mulhon respectvely The loans are at vaniable rates of interest. The multu-currency credit facility 1s repayable on 10 june 2040 and tne
mezzanine term loans are repayable on 31 August 2010 The lenders have @ fixed charge over certan freehold property plant and equipment of the
Waterford Wedgwood Group m Ireland UK and Germany The lenders also have a floaung charge over the majority of the Waterford Wedgwood
Group s worldwide inventory trade recevables and certain other assets of the Waterford Wedgwood Group

The muit-currency crean facdity and the mezzznine term loans are supject to two financal covenants rauo of semor debt to EBITDA and mumimum
trading cash flow. These covenants are tested manthly only when excess avallabiity for the Waterford Wedgwood Group (fundaole assets less deot) alls

below € 15 mifion

Subordinated debt

The subo~g nated debt fo

“n Angls Iosk Bank, prorades f2altec of £6 | miliion (2007 £5 4 mulion) to Rosenthal AG The loan 1< at variable rates of
werest and 15 repayadle on 18 November 2010 There are no financial covenants apphcable to the suberdin

avad dabt

Term loan
United Overseas Bank provides 2 facility of USS 10 milion (2007 US$10 milhon) of which US$4 0 milion (2007 US54 0 milhon) 15 for working caprial

purposes and US$6 0 mifion (2007 US56 0 mullion) 15 to fund the expansion of the Group s Indonesian manufacturing facility US$70 milion of the
iazility matures on 16 March 2010 and US$3 0 million matures on 2 August 2010 2nd the loans are at variable raes of interest The loans are secured

agains: the assets o7 PT Doulion There are no financial covenarts apphcable to this facirty
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|9 Borrowings continued

Matuntry anabysis of undrawn communed borrowang facilines

2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Milhons
Between one and two years o7 -
After two years 51 195
268 195
Fair value of borrowings
2008 2007
Book value Fair value Book vahie Fatr value
£ Millions £ Mulhons £ Millions £ Milions
Bank borrowings 1255 1260 120 1126

The far value of non isted debt 1s measured by discounting cash fiows at the prevailing interest and exchange rates

20 Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates pension schemes s a numoer of its businesses throughout the world The schemes are structured to accord with local condisons
and practices in each country thzt they operate in and can mclude both defined comtnbution and defined benefit schemes The assets of the defined

benefit schames are held where refevant 1n separate trustee adrunistered funds

(2} Defined contribunon schemes

The amount recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statemnent for defined connbution schemes for the year was £2 0 million

(2007 £1 9 ruthon)
(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates defined pensfit pension schemes in a number of countries i which it operates primarity i the United Xingdom, Germany

Canzaga and fapan

The values used in this disclosure are based on the most recent actuanal valuations and have been upaated by the inomdual schemes’ independent and

professionatly quelified actuanes to incorporate the requirements of LAS 19 'Employee Benefits 1n order to assess the liabilities of the vancus schernes as

at 5 Apn! 2008 using the projected umit o-edr mathod All 2ssetc in the schemes have been measured at therr far value at the balance sheet date

Full actuanal valuatons are carned ow for the Group s pension schemes at least on a tnennial basis The actuarizl reports are not avalable for public
inspecuon. The most recently completed actuarial valuaton of the major schemes were 25 ai 31 December 2004 for the Weagwood Group Plan and

! famuary 2005 jor tne Royal Douhlion UK Pension Scheme

2008 AnnJal Repo— & Aazzooms Ware=o-d Wadgweol JK Dle
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

20 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The amounts recogmsea In the income statement in relanon to pensions and other post employment obligations in the year were as follows

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Mithons
Current service cost 13 5
Gains on curtalments — (108}
Expected return on pension schemes assets (230) (230)
interest on retirement benefit obligations 251 25
Defined contributicn pension scheme charge 20 19
Net amount charged/(credited) to loss before income 1ax 54 (5 3)
The total amount recognised in the consolidated ncome statement in relation 1o defined contrbution and defined benefit schemes was
charged/(credited) as follows
2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Millions
Cost of sales 07 10
Seliing rarketing and distnbution expenses 11 12
Administrative expenses 15 12
Finance costs (note 5) 21 21
Exceptional tems {note 4) - (108)
54 (53)
We expect to cortribute £65 milkon to our defined benefit pension schemes in the 12 months 1o 4 April 2009
The amounts recognised in the consohdated statement of recognised income and expense were as follows
2008 2007
£ Millons £ Milions
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets (sn &
Expenence gains and Josses ansing on the schemes' labires 30 0]
Changes 17 assumptions underlymng the present velue of the schemes habilives 155 286
Actuarmal gain recognised 1o the eonsobdated starement of recogmsed income and expense 04 348
Aciual retum on scheme assels 49 29 |
243 239

Cumulative actuenal gans recognisad n consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

P
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20 Retirement benefic obligations continued

The assets and habilities in the schemes and the expected rates of return were

2008 2007 2006
Long term Long tem Long term
rate of Value rate of Value rate of Value
rewrn® £ Midhions return® £ Milhions rerum” £ Milhons
Equities 53%-74% 189 6 §53%-70% 2230 53%68% 2217
Gilts 44%—4 4% 1505 39%—4 0% 1366 38%-38% 1327
Bonds | 7%-6 0% 526 35%18% 395 35%45% 396
Property 64%-64% 208 59%-59% 225 5 B%-~5 8% 190
Cashicther Q2%-52% 39 08%48% &0 08%4 1% 45
Fair value of schemes” essets 417 4 427 6 4175
Present value of schemes obligations {476 Q) (4864 (526 2)
Net penston and other post employment benefit rabrhry (58 6) (58 8) (108 7)

#* The overall expected rate of return on schemes assets i based on current market long term expectations of each of the categones of assets m the

schemes The iong term rate of return on schemes assets are disclosed in a range format reflecuing the diffenng returns in each scherne

The schemes deficrt has been recognised in full in the consobidated balance sheet in non-current liabiimes

The principal financial assumpuions used by the Group s actuanes i order 1o calculate the penston schemes liabilrues are disclosed in a range format 10

reflect the differing assumptions in each scheme were as follows

2008 2007
inflation assumptons 00%-3 6% 00%-3 1%
Rate of mcrease in future pensionable salanes I 0%-3 0% | 0%-35%
Rate of inaease for pensions in paymerit and deferred pensions 00%3 5% 00%-30%
Rate used to discount schemne habifrues I 5%—6 2% | 8%-53%
The average Iife expsctancy i years of 2 pensioner retiring at age 65 15 2s follows
2008 2007
Years Years
Male 215 202
Female 24 4 331
2506 ~nnwi AEn0— B Azcouets\WMatzmeeT Weazwooe JK o
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20 Retirement benefit obligatrons continued

Detaled below 15 an analysis of the impact of changes in certain key assumptions on the post employment benefit obhganons as at 5 Apnl 2008

Increase
n obliganons
£ Mdlians
05% percentage point increase in future salares 17
05% percentage point increase in inflaon 128
0 1% percentage point decrease in discount rate 74
Increase in life expectancy of | year it3
The movements in the schemes’ obligations during the year were as follows
2008 2007
£ Mithons £ Milhons
Present value of schemes obligabions at the beginning of the year 486 4 5262
Current service cost 13 15
Gains on curtalments - {108)
Interest on benefit obhgations 25| 25
Employee contnbuiions - 04
Actuarial gan ansing on scheme lrabilities (185} (287)
Benefits pad (228) (244)
Translaton adjustments 45 29
Present value of schemes’ obhigations at the end of the year 476 0 486 4
The present value of schemes’ obligations at the end of the year that refates to
2008 2007
£ Milltans £ Millions
Wholly unfunded plans 228 228
Wholly or partly unded plans 4532 4636
476 0 486 4
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20 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The movements In the schemes’ assets during the year were as follows

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Muhons
Fair value of schemes assets at the beginning of the year 427 5 4175
Expecied return on schemes’ assets 230 230
Emplayer contributions 66 67
Employee contrbutions - 04
Actual retumn less expected return {18 1) 61
Benefits paid (228) (24 4)
Translzuon aajustments 11 un
Fair velue of schemes’ assets at the end of the vear 417 4 4276
2008 2007 2006 2005
£ Mitlions £ Millions £ Midlions £ Millions
Present value of schernes’ obligations (476 0) {486 4) (526 2) 479 9)
Farr value of schemes” assets 417 4 427 6 4175 3576
Net penston and other post employment benefit abihiry (58 6) (58 8) (108 7) {122 3)
Experience adjustments on schemes' habilites 30 0l (36) 04
Experience adjustments on schemes’ 2ssets (181) 6| 470 09
21 Share capital
2008 2007
£ Millions £ Millions
Authonised
120 million ordinary shares of 250 each 550 550
1605 bilion income shares of |p each 1605 1605
2155 2155

200E ~ == 3 Rese= & ACcooms Wmemoro Vvangwooo i pit
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2| Share capital continued

Ordinary shares Income shares
of 25p each of 1p each Toral
£ Militons £ Millions £ Millions
Issued as fully paid
At 5 Apnl 2008 — Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
— Income shares - 5,454,084,984 45 4 546 100 0
Issued as fully paid
At | April 2006 —~ Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
- Income shares — 4 450,138,481 454 445 B9 S
Bonus ssue of | 003,946 503 income shares - 101 i01
At 31 March 2007 — Ordinary shares ~ 181,601,769
—Income shares — 5,454,084,984 45 4 546 1000

in June 2006, the Waterford Wedgwood Group announced 2n open offer for | 003,546,503 new stock units {compnising an Ordinary Share of €006 in
Waterford Wedgwood plc 2nd an Incomne Share of 1p in Waterfard Wedgwood UK plc) at €006 per new stods unnt 1o raise €60 2 million before
expenses The net proceeds of the tssue of €58 4 mullion have been used to fund restructuning costs and for funaing the working capiial requirements of

the Waterford Weagwood Group

22 Reconciliation of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Retamed Transtation Minonty Total

capttal losses reserves Sub rotal nterests equity

£ Malhions £ Mithons £ Mihons £ Mdhons £ Mihions £ Millions

At | Aprl 2007 {000 (3617} 17 (2600) 20 (2580)

Currency translation adjustments - - (48) {48) - (¢ 8B)
Acwenal gans on defined benedt penston scnemes - 04 - 04 - 04

Loss for the year - (1704) - (1704) (10} (171 4)

Acquisiion of minonty interests - ©9) - (06) 06 -

At 5 April 2008 1000 (5323) {31) {435 4) 16 (433 8)

AL T Apcd 2006 899 {3737} (08) (284 4) 20 (2834)
Currancy translation aojustmants - - 23 23 {©n 22
Acwaral gains on defined benefit penston schemes - 348 - 348 - 348

(Loss)/profit for the year - (228) - {228) al (227
Bonus 1ssue of ncome shares 161 - - 101 - 101

Ar 31 March 2007 1600 (361 7) 17 {260 O) 20 (258 0}
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23 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
The Group's actvibies expose 1t to a vanety of financiad risks market nisk (inciuding foreign excnange nsk, interest rate nsk and price risk}, credit nisk and

hquidity nsk.

The Group's overall nsk management sesks to mimmise adverse effects on the Group's financial performance

The Group’s treasury operations are managed by the Waterford Wedgwood Group treasury funcuon within parameters formally defined and
reviewed by the Treasury Risk Management Cormmittee compnsing executive and non executive directors of the Waterford Wedgwood Group
Board and Waterford Wedgwood Group management, supplemented by procedures and bank mandates The Waterford Wedgwood Group
treasury funchon manages interest rate foreign currency and financing risk and rts actvities are routinely reported to members of the Waterford

Wedgwood Group Board

{a) Market nsk

(1) Foreign exchange rate ngk
The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed to the five man currencies Furo, Stering US dollar Swiss franc and Japanese yen Foreign exchange

nisk arses from future commeraial transactions, borrowing in foreign currency and net investments in foreign operations

It 15 the Groups policy to protect income and expenditure where appropriate by currency contracts
The Group's treasury pohey 15 to hedge up to 80% of anbaipated cash flows of Yen for tne subsequent {2 months The Group does not engage in
specutative actvity

Forergn currency third party receipts in the overseas operations are apphed to cover local costs such as purchase of product (both intercompany and
third party) payroll adverusing seling expenses etc In the manufactuning unrts forergn currency recerpts both from third pa-ty and intercompany are
first applied to setthng any correspanding foreign currency costs, with the net exposure converted wia spot or forward contract

The Group has certain investments and intercompany balances in foreign operations which are exposed to foreign currency translation nisk. The Group
manages these through actively managing its intercompany ang foreign currency bank funding 1in zppropriate operational currencies

Through fixed forward contracts and cap and collar arrangements at 5 Apnl 2008 the group has hedged 99% of it fiscal 2009 yen/steriing exposure at an
average rate of 215 50

In fiscal 2008 if the sterling rate achwveved against the yen had been )% weaker/stronger with all other vamables holding constant the post tax loss and
equity for the year would have been £02 million (2007 £0 2 millon) righer/lower as a result of the trading flow transactions during the year

The table below shows the Group’s currency exposures being thoss that give rise to the net currency gamns and losses recogrised in the income
siatement. Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and habibnes of the Group that are not denominateg in the funcwonal currency of the

operating unit invoived These exposures were a5 folfows

2208 Anrus' Redamt & Accounts Wateriong Weagwoot UK i
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23 Financial risk management continued

Uss Yen Other Total

£ Mullons £ Millions £ Millions £ Millions
2008
Functonal currency of Group operations
Eurc I |2 06 29
Sterling (28 6) 56 (37) {267)
Other on - 05 04
Total @76) 68 26 234
2007
Functioral currency of Group operatons
Euro S - 04 55
Stering 57 50 @3 104
Other 0n I3 12
Total 107 S0 (26} 171

(31) Intterest rate risk

The interest rate expasure of the Group ansmg from s borrowangs and deposits 15 rranaged as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group

The average cost of bank borrowsngs for the Group in fiscal 2008 was 3 20% versus 8 61% in fiscal 2007

The Group has calculated that a 1% change in the fiscal 2008 interest rate wouid have resutted 1n a £2 0 million (2007 £} 6 milkon) change i tne

imterest charge on bank borrowings

The Group has net entered Into any interest rates swaps during fiscal 2008

The currency and merest rate exposure of the financil liabives of the Group was.  _ -

Floanng rate
fnancial
labiines

£ Milions
2008
Currency
Eurc 294
Sterling 44 8
US Dollar 60 4
Yen 92

143 8

Fioatng rate
finane1al
habiltnes

£ Mibons
2007
Currency
Euro 1BO
te~hing 07
US Doller 517
130 4
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23 Financial sk management continued

Interest rates on floaung rate vorowings are based on nauonal LIBOR equivalents in the relevant currencies

{112) Price risk
The Group has 2 minmal exposure to commodity price rsk.

{b) Credit rsk
Credrt risk cansists pring:pally of short term cash depostts and trade recervables and 15 managed at a dvisional level but monnored certrally

Short term cash deposits
For banks and financial instrtutions only independently rated parties with a mimimum raung of A are accepted The credn raungs for the instiutions where

short term cash deposits were held are.

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Milhons
Credut raung
ASA, el 0l
AAL - '8
AA 54 45
AA- 03 0g
Aot 12 03
A 38 36
Total 1046 111

(c) Ligqundaey sk
The Group s liquidity nsk management 15 managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group and requires maintaining sufficient cash and

adequate commitied credit facifies

Waterford Wedgwood Group management monstor divisional generated monthly roliing forecasts of the Groups weekly cash requirements based cn
forecast recespts and payments and the avallability of credit ines under the Waterford Wedgwood Group’s asset based lending facilrty Waterford
Wedgwood Group management allocate funds to each of tne divisions based on their monthly subrmussions and the credrt facilives avallable

The Group 15 #inanced through equity and secured and unsecured bank loans The Group's trading has been negatively affected in recent years by adverse
foreign currency exchange rates and a reduction in core seles, which has resulted in trading losses Ongoing treding difficulties have compromised the
ability of tne Group to use funas raised 1o implement, on 2 tmely basis restructunng actions necessary to reduce the Group s cost base

Dunng the year the Waterford Wedgwood Group rarsed €166 6 milion (before expenses) from the ssue of cumulative convertible preference shares A
portion of the €166 & million proceeds from the issue of preference shares has been applied to reduang the level of trade payables Dunng fiscal 2008
the total level oi rrage payables was reducea from £53 3 mufiion to £41 3 wnile e ievel of trage payables outsige crect terrms has Deen supstantaily
reduced by £7 9 million from £240 miflion at 31 March 2007 10 £16 | mifion at 5 Apnt 2008 In addrion £8 3 mullion has been spent on restructuring

acuvities

Since tne yezar 2nc the Waterfora Yveogwooa Group nas placed tne remaining €334 milnon of te €100 mulion private placement of convertitie
preference shares announced in July 2007 Adaimonat infermation on the Waterford Wedgwooc Group s current liquidrey plans 1s given in note |

The following table znafyses the Grous's financial kabiliues into relevant maturity groupings bzsed on the remamming period at the balance sheet cate to
contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed in the tapie are tne contractual undiscounted cash flaws

2CIE Annua' Reso™ & Accourts Wateniome Wedgweed UK olc
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23 Financial risk management continued

Uptol 2-5 After 5
year years years
£ Milhons £ Milhons £ Miltons
2008
Bank borrowings (9 8) (1377) -
Trade and other payzbies (651} (34) -
Finance tease obligations (26) 94) (264)
2007
Bank borrowings {107y (136 1) Z
Trade and otner payables (75 6} 09 -
Finance lease obligations (23) {93) (280)

The table below analyses the Group's dervative financial Instruments settled on a gross basis, nto relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining
penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty daie The amounts disclosed n the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
Balznces due within |2 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting 15 not significant.

Up to 1 year
£ Milhons
2008
Forward foresgn currency exchange contracts - cash flow hedges
Cutflow (1324)
Infiow 125
2007
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts — cash flow nedges
Quiflow - (128}
Inflow 131
Capital nsk management
The caprtal structure of the Group 1s managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group
The capiiat structure of the Group which compnses net debt end equity may be summansed as foliows
i 2008 2007
£ Milhons £ Milhons
Caprta! and resarves attributable to the Comoany s eaurty holders {425 4} {2600)
Net debt {note 29 ) 1332 1129
Captral and net debt {302 2) (140 1)

The Waterford Wedgwood Group monnors czpiial with speciic emphass on net aept Net aebt 15 calculated 2s total borrowings finance lease
ebligations less cash and cash equivalents Totat capial 1s calculated a3 equity’ * as shown In the consohdated balance sheet plus net geot

Fair value esttmauon

The fair value of financal Instruments thet are not traoed i an acave market (for example overthe-counter dervatives) 1s determined by using valualion
techaiguas Tne Group uses & vanety of metnods and makes zssumouons tnat are based on rarketr conamions exsung a: each balance shest czte
Quoted markes pces or dealer evoies 1or simila- mstruments 27€ vse< 1or long-term aedt Other tecnmiques such 2 esumeted discountec cash flows
a-e Lsac 1o ostarming iz value \or e ~emaining finencial insmames The (2 velde of forward joreign Currency £xChange Contralls is ORISITNeG LSing

Quoies 1o v arc EXChE'}gE rates 2t the szlance snast Sate
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23 Financial risk management continued

Estimates and pudgments are continually evaluated and are based on mistoncal expenence and other facters including expectatons of future events that
are beleved to be reasonable under the circumstances

The carmying value of trade and other payables and trade and other recewvables less impairment provisions are assurned to approsamate their fair values
The farr value of financial iabiliies for disclosure purposes 15 estimated by discouniing the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest

rate tnat 1s avalavle to the Group for simitar financial instrurents.

24 Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been appiied to the line stems below

Assets at fair Denvatves
Loans and  value through the used for
recetvables income statement hedging Total
£ Milhons £ Millions £ Millions £ Millions
2008
Asset per the balance sheet
Traae and other recevables 985 - - 985
Other financial assets 17 - - 17
Cash and cash equivalents 106 - - 1086
Total 110 8 - - 1108
Liabiliries at farr Derrvatives . _ .~
Other nanual  value through the 7 ysed for
liabiiies  incomme statement hedping Tortal
£ Millions £ Millions £ Miflions £ Millions
2008
Liabihnes per the balance sheet
Trade and other payables 5844 - — 584 4
Finance leases 183 - - 183
Borrowngs 1255 - - i255
Total 7282 - - 728.2
Assers or forr Deermvatives
Loans and value througn the used for
recervables  income statement hedging Total
£ Millions £ Millions £ Mulhons £ Milhens
2007
Asset per the balance sheet
Trade and other recevables i0s6 - - 1056
Other financial assets 13 - - 13
Casn and cesh equivalenis 11 - - 1ii
Totaf 1180 - - 1180

2008 Azl Bapo— & AZco.nTs wererord Wedgweos J K ple
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24 Financial instruments by category continued

Laabihues at far Dermvatves
Other financial  value through the used for
habilibes income statement hedging Total
£ Mullions £ Millons £, Mdllions £ Millions
2007
Liabilines per the balance sheet
Trade and other payables 4689 - - 4689
Finance leases 184 - - 184
Borrowings 1120 - - 1120
Total 5993 - - 599 3

25 Dernivative financial instruments

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts
The Group uses forwarg foreign currency exchange contracts in the normal course of bustness to hedge exchange nsk on anticipated foresgn currency

transactions

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign currency exchange contracts at 5 April 2008 all maturing within the next |2 months

are.
2008 2007
Milions Milhens

Japanese Yen Yen2,7000 Yen3,0000

During the year ansing from the Groups cash flow hedging activities, the exchange rate on its major overseas trading cash flows was as follows

2008 _ 2007

Yen/Stertng 228 87 23635
26 Capital commitments

2008 2007

£ Mihons £ Mihons

¥ 06

Contractes for but not provded .

Of the above 709 rilion {2007 206 mition) re'ates 1o prope-iy plant ana eaupment anc £0 2 rmilion (2007 Znil rullion) relztes 1o inzangible 2ssexs
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27 Operating lease commitments

Az the batance sheet date, the Group had outstanaing commitreents under non-cancellable operating leases which 3l dus as follows

2008 2007

£ Mihons £ Mallions

No later than one year 14§ 144
Between twe and five years 337 368
After five years 235 260
713 7712

The total of future minimum sublease payments to be receved under non-cancellable subleases at 5 April 2008 were £180 milien (2007 £18 8 million)

The majorty of the operating lease commiuments relate to the rental of property under long-term rentai contracts The outstanding term of operating
leases at 5 April 2008 ranges from less than one year to twenty four years Property rentals are typically fixed for a penod of five years with other

rentals fixed for the term of the contract

28 Reconcdiation of loss before income tax to net cash used In operating activities

2008 2007
£ Milkions £ Milhons
Loss before income tax (177 3) (225)
Adjustrnents for
Finance cost 191 178
Finance income (08) ©4)
Exceptional tems 7i9 08
Depreciztion and amortisation 124 152
Adgjustment for gains on disposal of assets (1) 09
Unrezlised foreign currency exchange movemems 49) 21
Restructunng spend 83 {134)
Loss from operations before changes 1n wortkang capital and provisions (88 8) (1.2)
Increase 10 inventones (118) {(127)
Decrezse/(increase) 1n operaung recenvables 103 80)
Increase ip opa-zting payables i0l1 8 ite
117 (103)

Cash generated by/(used in) operauons

2006 Annua Report & Adtos st oS Mg od IX 2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

29 Analysis of net debt

Asat  Inception of new Exchange As at

1 Apnl 2007 finance leases Cash flow movements 5 April 2008

£ Mdhons £ Mullions £ Milliens £ Milbons £ Mdhons

Cash, cash equrvalents and bank overdrafts 105 - (08) 09 106
Finance laase obligations (t84) {G8) 12 ©3) (183)
Long term ioans (1120) - (3 6) (39 (1255)
(119 9) (0 8) (9.2) (33) (1332}

Asat  Inception of pew Exchange Asat

1 Apnl 2006 finance leases Cash flow movements 31 March 2007

£ Milhons £ Milions £ Mudhons £ Millons £ Milkions

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafis 157 - (44) {0B) 105
Finance lease obligations (179) {15} |0 - (184}
Long term loans (850) - (2368) 68 {1120
{972} (15) (272} 60 (115 9)

30 Principal subsidiary companies

Listed below are the prncipal subsidiary companies that compnise the Waterford Wedgwood UK Group

Name

Regntered office 2nd country
of mcorporatan

lesund capital

Nature of tuminess

MANUFACTURING
Josiah Wedgwood & Sons Lid

Rosenthzl AG

PT Doulton

Barlaston Sioke-on-Trent England
Selb, Garmany

Tangerang Indonesia

60000 Stg £1 Ord shares
1 055999 shares of no par value

15 852 US$1 000 Ord shares

Ceramic tabieware/

giftware manufacturer
Ceramic tableware/giftware
manufacturer and distributor
Ceramic tableware/

gifoware manufacturer

DISTRIBUTION
Waterforg Wedgwoog Austrahia Ltd
*Waterford Wedgwood Canada inc

Waterford Wedgwood USA inc

Waterford Wedgwood Japan Lid

Waterford Wedgwooo Retai Lia

Josiah Wedgwood & Sens {Exports) Ltd

“Waterford Wedgwood Tracing
Singapors Pre Lid

watarford Weagwood {Tamwan) Ltg

Weagwood Gmo-

Spring U 5.4 Corporation

Rayz! Doulten (UK) Limited

Royzl Doutton Ausiraha Pty Limeed

Rayel Doultpn Cznzaz Limiteo

Rayzl Doulton hong Kong Limned
Royzl Joution Jeozn KK
Roval Deulten USA Inc

Barlaston, Stoke-on-Trem, Engiand
Toronto Canaca

New York, USA

Tokyo Japan

Barizston Stoke-on-Trent, England
Barlzston Swoke-on-Trent, England

Singapore

Taipe: Tamen

Selb, Germany

Delaware USA,

Barlaston, Stoke-on-Trent, Snglans
Syaney Ausirakie

Toromeg Cenaca

Hang Kong
Tokyo Janzn
New [ersey USA

Wera-iore Waogwooc UK pig 2008 Annuzi Redo™ & Accourts

485 240 Stg £} Org shares
110 Class A shares

363 Class B shares

20 LSS Common shares
4 000 ¥50 000 shares

100 S1g £§ Ord shares
499 Sig £t Ord shares

248 $550,000 shares
13 600,000 NT$10 Ord snares
| €25 5E5 share
146 USS0 01 shares
32670,683 Sig L1 Org shares
1 531,983 AS1 Oro. snares
38 500 Common snares

ofno par value
B 002000 KS| Org sneres
2 000 ¥50,000 Common snarss
600 LS5100 Common shares

Disinbutor
Distrbutar

Ohistnbutor
Distributor
Retasier
Exporter

Dustirbutor
Dastrbutor
Sales office
Distnbutor
Distriputor
Distripuior
Dustribuior

O storer
Do
Distosio-




30 Principal subsidiary companies continued

FINANCE

tatum Limited Barlaston, Stoke-on-Trent, England 50,000 Stg £1 Ord shares Finance |
COTHER |
*wedgwood Ltd Barlzston Stoke-on-Trent England 46 195,052 Stg25p Ord shares Subsidiary hoiding company
*Waterford Wedgwood Inc Delawars USA 430 shares of no par value Subsicdiary halding campany
Waterford Wedgwood GmbH Selb, Germany | €5,603 000 share Subsidiary holding company

*Royal Doulton Ltd Bartaston Stoke-on-Trent, England 83,091 072 Stg £099 deferred shares Subsidiary nolding company

332 364 288 Sig £00) Ord shares

immediate subsidianes of Waterford Wedgwood U K pic zre marked® With the exceptian of Rosenthal AG where the Group owns 907% (and has a call option n

respect of a furtner 5 7%} Waterford Wedgwood Canada inc where the Group owns 77%, Sprng USA Corporation

wnere the Group owns 60% and PT Doulton

where the Group owns 95%, alt subsioiary companies are 100 per cent owned All compznies operate prmarily n thew country of ncorporation with the exception

of Waterford Wedgwood Australia Limred which operates in Austraha.

31 Waterford Wedgwood UK pic

Witerford Wedgwood U K ple 1s 2 public hmrted Gabilty company domicied and Incorporated in

Barlaston
Stoke-on Trent
Staffordshire
England ST12 9ES

fts pnncipal activity 15 as a helding company The Company’s subsidiznes are engaged in the manufacture marketing and distribution of luxury Ifestyle
products through four major intematicnal brands Waterford Crystal, Wedgwood Royal Doutton and Rosenthal

32 Related party transactions

The Group ts managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group Note 37 of the Waterford Wedgwooad olc financial staterents describes the

related party transactions pertaining to the Waterford Wedgwood Group

33 Subsequent events

Detatls of the Groug s future funding rartiatives are set out i note | to these financial statements

34 Approval of consolidated financial statements

Tne Directors aoprovec tne consohidates finanaef stztements on | August 2008

the Unrted Kingdom The registered office addiess s |

[n
(V3]
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Company accounting policies
under UK. GAAP

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements are prepared
under the histoncal cost convennon and n
accordance with the accounting pohces set
out below, accounting standards generally
aecepied m the Unuted Kingdom and

U K stanate

The financial informatoen is prepared for

a 53 week period ending on 5 April 2008
Comparanves are for the 32 week period
ended on 31 March 2007 The balance sheets
for 2008 and 2007 have been drawn up as at
5 April 2008 and 31 March 2007 respecavely

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in subsichary undertakings are
valued at the lower of amornsed cost less
prowision for imparment or net realisable
value Exchange gans and losses ansing on
translanon of these investments are taken
directly 1o revenue reserves, along with the
corresponding exchange gain or loss ansing
on foreygn currency denommated habilines
used to hedge anneipated foreign exchange
fluetuanons 1 the vatlue of overseas
mvestments

DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Debtors and other recervables are recogmsed
n:ually at far value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effecuve interest method, less prowsion for
impatrment A provision for impairment of
debtors and other recewvables 15 established
when there 15 objectve evidence that the
Company will not be able 1o collect all
amounts due according to the ongmal
terms of the recevable The amount of the
provision 15 the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of
furure cash fows The Company’s debios
prunarily comprise Inter-company amounts
which have no fixea matunng dates and are
repayable on demand

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The financial statements of the Company are
measured using the cusrency that reflects the
primary economuc environment in which the
enury operates (‘the funcnonal currency’)
‘The financial statements are presented in
sterling, which 15 the Company's functional
and presentatiop currency 1ransacnons in
foreign cusrencies are recorded at the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habiiries denominated
1 foreign currencaes are iranslated nto the
functional currency at the rate of exchange
at the balance sheet date

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Company’s creditors prumaniy comprise
inter-company payables which have no fixed
maturing dates and are repayable on demand
Inter-company payables are recognised
imaally at farr value and subsequently
measured at amortused cost using the
effective interest method

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
Financial guarantee contracts are 1ssued to
banking msututions by the Company as part
of cross guarantee arrangemen:s throughout
the Waterford Wedgwood plc Group The
Company and the subsidiaries engage 1n
ongomng financing arrangements with these
banking insttunons The Company s 2
guarantor under certain of the Waterford
Wedgwood Group's facthiies Under the
terms of FRS 26 ‘Financial Instruments
Measuremen:” financial guarantee contracts
are required to be recogrused at fair value

at mception and subsequently measured

as & provision under FRS 12 “Provisions,
Connngent Liabiimes and Conungent Assets”
on the Company balance sheet There was no
mnpact on the result for the year
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Company balance sheet
As at 5 April 2008

2008 2007
Notes £ Midlons £ Millions
Fixed assets
Financial assets 1 26 217
Current assets
Debtors 2 - 306
Creditors (amounts falling due within ane year) 3 (18 6) (60 3)
Net current habiines (48 6) (29 7)
Total assets less current Labilities (46 0) 80)
Capital and reserves
Ca'led up share capital 4 1000 1000
Profit and loss account 5 {146 0) (1080)
Shareholders’ deficit (46 0) (B8 0)

Peter John Goulandns
Charman
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Notes to the company balance

I Financial assets

The Company s investrments I0 its subsidianes were s follows

sheet

£ Mitkons
2008
Cost
At | Apnl 2007 1879
Translavon adjustmeants on
At5 April 2008 187 8
Prowvision for imparrnent
At | Apnl 2007 {1662)
Impairment charge {150}
At 5 April 2008 {185.2)
Net book vaive
At | Apnl 2007 217
At 5 Apnl 2008 26
£ Milhons
2007
Cost
At | Apnl 2006 1926
Translation adjustments “n
At 31 March 2007 1879
Prowision for imparment
At | Apnl 2006 (174 9)
Write back of impairment charge 87
At 31 March 2007 (1662)
MNet book value
At | Apnl 2006 177
217

At 31 March 2007

2006 Az Rasc— & ~Itounis Wememio-s Weagwees WK pie
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Notes to the company balance sheet

2 Debtors
2008 2007
£ Millhons £ Milhons
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertaking 178 306
Prowision for impairment of amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings (17 8) -
- 306
3 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
2008 2007
£ Milbons £ Milhons
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings 486 601
Other payables - 02
48 6 603

Financial risk management objectives snd policies

The Company 1s managed as part of the Groups financial nsk managernent procedures These objectives and policies are set out on note 23 to the
Group finanaiat statements There 15 na specfic foreign currency risk. Iiquidity nsk credst ask or wnterest rate nsk inherent n e Company that differs

from the objectives and polices noted

The Company does not have any cash flow hedges or hedges of net :nvestments The Company's creditors comprise inter-company eredrtors which have

no fixed maturity date and are repayable on gemand

Fair value of inancial instruments
Set out below 1s a year end comparson of book and fair values of the financial insti uments by category

Farr values of financal assets and financial habilmes are as follows

As ar 5 Apral 2008 As at 31 March 2007

Book valua Fair value Bool value Fair value

£ Millions £ Millons £ Mdhons £ Millions

imer-company debtors - - 306 306
Inter-company creaners 485 486 sC ! 01

The carrying value of inter-company debtors and intercompany creditors 2pproximates to their far value

Interest ncome amounted to £ 4 mililon (2007 £1 3 million) and interest expense amounted to £3 & million (2007 £4 5 miliion)

Wate—s-o Weagy woo UK p'¢ 2008 A2’ Repe B Alo.=s



4 Share capital

2008 2007
£ Millions £ Maidhions
Authonsed
220 million ordinary shares of 25p each 559 B50
i 605 bilbon income shares of Ip each 1605 1605
2155 2155
Ordinary shares Income shares
of 25p each of 1p each Total
£ Milhons £ Mithons £ Mihons
Issued as fully pad
At 5 Apnl 2008 — Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
- Income shares — 5,454,084,984 45 4 546 1000
Issued as fully paid
At [ April 2006 - Orainary shares —~ 181,601,769
— Income shares — 4 450 138,481 454 445 g9 9
Bonus issue of 1,003,946 503 income shares - 101 101
At 31 March 2007 ~ Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
- Income shares — 5,454,084,984 454 546 1000

in june 2006 the Waterford Wedgwood Group znnounced an open offer for | 003 546 503 new stock units {(comprising an Ordinary Share of €006 in
Waterford Wedgwood plc and an Income Share of {p in Waterford Wedgwood UK plc) at €006 per new stock unit to raise €60 2 milien before
expenses The net proceeds of the tssue of €58 4 million have been used to fund restructunng costs and for funding the working capital requirerment of

the Waterford Wedgwood Group

5 Profit and loss account

2008 2007

£ Mdlions £ Milhons

Cpening calance (1080) (1163)
(Loss)/profit for the year (379) 130
Translauon of net ivestments in overseas subsidiaries {0n <7
Closing balance (146 0) {108 0)

2008 Annua Renat & Accourts Weaterog Weggwosa UK plt

61



63

Notes to the company balance sheet

6 Audit fees

Audrt fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers by the Company amounted to £ril {2007 £nii) Audr fees are borne by 2 Group company

7 Approval of company financial statements

The Directors approved the Company financial statements on | August 2008
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